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2023
78,841,154 99.97
21,830 0.03
78,862,984
10,578 100.00
2023

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025

0| 2025/ /23] 79,221,730 | 76,971,833 | 70,467,729 |89.35

Luminis 11
Limited 0%
07/23/2025/AUD/

0| 2025/ /23 | 14,086,370 | 12,670,690 | 8,373,425 [10.62

2023

2023
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2023

(2020 12 ) 155,694,127 20,883 9.99 1,340 10.02 892
(021 12 ) 109,533,092 14,692 9.64 1,293 9.50 845
(2022 12 ) 78,428,757 10,520 8.83 1,184 8.82 785
2022 96,250,817 12,910 9.17 1,230 8.97 798
91,450,617 12,266 9.07 1,217 8.86 788

90,607,424 12,153 9.19 1,233 9.06 806

87,917,489 11,792 9.10 1,221 8.99 800

81,915,783 10,987 8.89 1,192 8.84 787

10 78,663,345 10,551 8.80 1,180 8.83 786

11 78,386,889 10,514 8.82 1,183 8.88 790

12 78,428,757 10,520 8.83 1,184 8.82 785

2023 79,607,145 10,678 8.94 1,199 8.97 798
78,563,418 10,538 8.87 1,190 8.92 794

78,597,904 10,542 8.90 1,194 8.95 796

78,862,984 10,578 8.97 1,203 9.01 802
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0.10

3.50

8.40

0.20

5.19

7.16

100 x

10.00

14,023,532.016
(14,023,532.016)

603,955.703
(603,955.703)

13,419,576.313
(13,419,576.313)

0.000
(0.000)

3,298,631.310
(3,298,631.310)

10,120,945.003
(10,120,945.003)

0.000
(0.000)

2,185,079.003
(2,185,079.003)

7,935,866.000
(7.935,866.000)

3,069,022.042
(3,069,022.042)

254,532.413
(254,532.413)

2,814,489.629
(2,814,489.629)

0.000
(0.000)

1,075,993.961
(1,075,993.961)

1,738,495.668
(1,738,495.668)

0.000
(0.000)

343,122.728
(343,122.728)

1,395,372.940
(1,395,372.940)
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2023

2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31

10 78,322,261 10,505,365
167,401 22,453
8,927 1,197
13,463 1,806
78,512,052 10,530,822
78,428,757 10,519,649
14 78,428,757 10,519,649
35,398 4,748
10,019 1,344
11,499 1,542
26,379 3,538
83,295 11,172
78,512,052 10,530,822

DMS 2020 07

7,935,866 1,395,373

14 70,078,803 9,399,670 8,349,954 1,119,979
8.831 1,185 5.984 803

15
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2021 12 31
DMIS 2020 07
2021 12 31

10 109,538,299 14,692,372
25,007 3,354
131,971 17,701
73,031 9,796
109,768,308 14,723,223
109,533,092 14,691,674
109,533,092 14,691,674
49,444 6,632
13,994 1,877
131,842 17,684
39,936 5,357
235,216 31,550
109,768,308 14,723,223

DMS 2020 07

10,120,945 1,738,496
97,552,694 13,084,743 11,980,398 1,606,931
9.639 1,293 6.891 924
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2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
2,846 382
52,846 7,088
(8,441,736) (1,132,290)
(8,386,044) (1,124,820)
12 (489,659) (65,678)
12 (138,583) (18,588)
(54,217) (7,272)
(682,459) (91,538)
(9,068,503) (1,216,358)
(9,068,503) (1,216,358)

(9,068,503) (1,216,358)
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2021 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2021 12 31
(4,516,152) (605,751)
(4,516,152) (605,751)
12 (701,936) (94,151)
12 (198,661) (26,646)
(76,506) (10,262)
(71,607) (9,605)
(1,048,710) (140,663)
(5,564,862) (746,415)
(80) 1D
(5,564,942) (746,426)

(5,564,942) (746,426)
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2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
109,533,092 14,691,674
(22,035,832) (2,955, 666)
(9,068,503) (1,216,358)
78,428,757 10,519,649
2021 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2021 12 31
155,694,127 20,883,253
(40,596,093) (5,445,154)
(5,564,942) (746,426)

109,533,092 14,691,674
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2022 12 31

DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31

(9,068,503) (1,216,358)

1,987,886 266,635

6,453,850 865,655

22,774,302 3,054,717

123,044 16,504

59,568 7,990

(14,046) (1,884)

(3,975) (533)

(13,557) (1,818)

22,298,569 2,990,907

(22,156,175) (2,971,808)

(22,156,175) (2,971,808)

142,394 19,099

25,007 3,354

167,401 22,453
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2021 12 31

DMS 2020 07
2021 12 31

(5.564,942) (746,426)

(182,518) (24,481)

4,698,670 630,233

41,630,913 5,583,954

1,453,843 195,004

(54,548) (7,317)

(20, 858) (2,798)

(5,903) (792)

23,409 3,140

41,978,066 5,630,518

(42,049,647)

(5,640,119)

(42,049,647)

(5,640,119)

(71,581) (9,601)
96,588 12,955
25,007 3,354
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2022 12 31
1990
2020
35
2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07 2020 28
DMS 2103 2021 30
DMS 2020 07
2020 28
2025 25
DMS 2103 10
2021 30
2031 31
102
FRS102
1990
FRS102
AIFM
12
FRS102
AIFM

10
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DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
31,504 226,315
(2,019,390) (43,797)
(1,987,886) 182,518
(159, 056) (1,728,321)
(6,294,794) (2,970, 349)
(6,453, 850) (4,698,670)
(8,441,736) (4,516,152)
DMS 2103
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
23,622 57,415
(3,769,247) (197,036)
(3,745,625) (139,621)
423 129
(25,299,925) (5,589,749)
(25,299,502) (5,589, 620)
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1997 739
1997 739
1997
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
230
57,488
109,683

167,401
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2021 12 31

an
7,527
17,497
25,007

2022 12 31

430
38,012
163,340
201,782

2021 12 31

1%
6,415
1,247,352
1,253,752

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

25,711 31,609
668 932
7,395

26,379 39,936

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

681,506 300,953

736 1,132
44,755 98,744
726,997 400,829
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0.15

125,000

2022 12 31 DMS 2020

07 138,583 2021 12 31 198,661
10,019 2021 12 31 13,994 DMS
2103 156,105 2021 12 31
164,761 11,036 2021 12 31 16,975
0.53
2022 12 31 DMS
2020 07 489,659 2021 12 31 701,936
35,398 2021 12 31 49,444 DMS

2103 551,571 2021 12 31

582,156 38,992 2021 12 31 59,979
10 0.04 15 0.035 25
0.03
0.01
2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
9,239 2021 12 31 13,244 668 2021 12 31 932
DMS 2103

10,407 2021 12 31 10,984 736 2021 12 31 1,132
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2020 07

245,574
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2022 12 31
2103
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22,855 2021 12 31 22,571
25,000 290
DMS
0 2021 12 31 76,506 DMS
2103 0 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2021 12 31 92,584 DMS 2103
125,566 2021 12 31 193,902
2103
DMS
380,553 2021 12 31 300,953
2021 12 31 300,953
2021 12 31
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10.00 150,000
10.00 200,000
0.01 0.01
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

10,120,945 1,738,496 13,419,576 2,814,490

(2,185,079)  (343,123) (3,298,631) (1,075,994)
7,935,866 1,395,373 10,120,945 1,738,496
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DMS 2103
2022 12 31 2021 12
12,726,668 1,504,927
13,862,114 1,687,527
(1,923,946)  (266,534) (1,135,446)  (182,600)
10,802,722 1,238,393 12,726,668 1,504,927
2022 12 31
2020 07 11,499 2021 12
31 131,842 DMS 2103
2,193 2021 12 31 984,335
2022 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
29,282 35,566
9,239 13,244
15,696 22,797
54,217 71,607
DMS 2103
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
380,553 300,953
10,407 10,984
37,231 29,572
428,191 341,509

10.
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@
10
2020 07
7,833,112 2021 12 31 10,967,027 DMS 2103
8,484,269 2021 12 31 13,204,103

10
DMS 2020 07

100.00 100.00
DMS 2103

100.00 100.00
(b)

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
©

AIFM AIFMD

AIFM

AIFM
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)
BBH
BBH BBH
BBH
A+ 2021 12
31 A+
A 2021 12 31 A
2022 12 31
MFS
DOT DOT MFS
UBO
DOT
1,000

2022 12 31
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®
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,471,185 70,040,867 78,512,052
(83,295) (83,295)
8,471,185 69,957,572 78,428,757
2021 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
12,034,303 97,734,005 109,768,308
(235,216) (235,216)
12,034,303 97,498,789 109,533,092
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DMS 2103
2022 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
5,886,269 79,158,626 85,044,895
(779,218) (779,218)
5,886,269 78,379,408 84,265,677
2021 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
10,100,706 123,194,074 133,294,780
(1,462,118) (1,462,118)
10,100,706 121,731,956 131,832,662
2022 12 31
2020 07
423,559 2021 12 31 601,715 DMS
2103 294,313 2021 12 31 505,035
®
FRS102 2A.1
2016 FRS 34.22

IFRS 13 GAAP
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31
78,322,261 78,322,261
78,322,261 78,322,261
2021 12 31

109,538,299 109,538,299
109,538,299 109,538,299
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DMS 2103
2022 12 31
84,842,688 84,842,688
84,842,688 84,842,688
2021 12 31
132,020,528 132,020,528
132,020,528 132,020,528
FRS102
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
109,538,299 155,685,364
(22,775,094) (41,627,608)
(1,986,221) 166,693
(6,454,723) (4,686,150)
78,322,261 109,538,299
2022 12 31

3,916,113 2021 12 31 5,476,915
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2021 12 31
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2103
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
132,020,528
150,841,205
(18,132,975) (13,120,646)
(3,744,521) (110,701)
(25,300,344) (5,589, 330)
84,842,688 132,020,528
30
2021 12 31 6,601,026
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1.4746 1.3786
1.0705 1.1370
2022 12 31
AIFM
IE
FRS102
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2022 23
2022 12 14
13.
IE
14.
FRS102
DMS 2020 07
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
78,428,757 109,533,092
15,454 92,584
78,444,211 109,625,676
DMS 2103
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
84,265,677 131,832,662
125,566 193,902

84,391,243 132,026,564
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15.
2022 24

EU NATO

2022 23
2022 11
2022 12 14
2022 12 D04
A4EO 35
2022 12 31

16.

2022 12 31

17.
2023 15
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2022 12 31

DMS 2020 07

2021 12 31 100.00

80,060,030 69,908,418 89.13
14,116,570 8,413,843 10.73
78,322,261 99.86

106,496 0.14

78,428,757 100.00
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022
DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 1020-07 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs (Investng in Goldman Sschs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
As at Az ut
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
Notes uUsD UsDh
Current Assets
Financial assels at fair value through
profit or loss 2,10 78,322 261 84,842 688
Cash 3 167401 201,782
Receivable for investments sold 8927 -
(rher receivable 13,463 423
Total Current Asscts 78,512,052 5,044,895
Equity
Net assets attributable to Unitholders 78,428,757 84,265,677
Total Equity 14 78,428,757 84,265,677
Current Linbilities
Distribution fees payable 5 35,398 38,992
AIFM fees payable 5 10,019 11,036
Payable for Units repurchased 7 11,499 2,193
Orther payable i 26,379 726,997
Totnl Current Liabilities 83,295 779,218
Total Equity and Carrent Liabilities 78,512,052 85,044,895
DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
{(Investing in Goldman Sachs (Imvesting in Goldman Sachs
Corporste Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
Usp AUD uspD AUD
Unit Class Unit Class Umit Class Unit Clasa
Number of Units in Issue 7 7,935 866 1,395,373 10,802,722 1,238,393
Net Asset Value per Unit Class 14 70,078,803 8,349,954 78,536,002 5729675
Net Asset Value per Unit 3.831 5,984 T.270 4.627

Signed on behalf of Waystone Management Company ([E) Limited

— by b

Date: 15 June 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Seiting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bomds)*
Asat Asat
31 December 2021 31 December 2021
MNotes UsD UsD
Current Asseis
Firancial assets a1 fair value through
profit or loss 210 109,538,709 132,020,528
Cash 3 25.007 1,253,752
Receivable for investments sold 131,971 20,500
Other receivable 73.031 -
Total Current Assets 109, 768,308 133,294 780
Equity
Met assete atributable to Unithelders 109,533,002 131.832.662
Total Equity 14 19, 523,003 131,532,662
Current Liabilities
Digribution fees payable 5 49,444 59979
AIFM fees payable 5 13,554 16975
Payable for Units repurchased 7 131,842 84,335
Cther payable + 39,936 400,829
Total Current Liabilitics 235,26 1462118
Total Equity and Current Liabilities 109, 768, 308 133,294,780
DMS Target Maturity [IMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Func 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bomds)*
UsD AUD UsD ALY
Undt Class Uit Class Unit Class Unlt Class
Number of Units in Issue 7 10,120,945 1,738.496 12,726,668 1.504,927
Met Assed Value per Unit Class 14 97 852 694 11,930,398 121,811,029 10,021,633
Mel Assed Value per Unil 09639 5,391 2571 6659

*The sub-fund Immched on 30 March 2021,

The accompanying noies form an integral part of these financial statements.
12

142/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

DMS Target Maturity
Sefting Fund 2020-07
(Investing in Goldman Sachs

DS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs

Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
For the Mnandal vear ended  For the Mnancial vear ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
MNotes USD USD
Income
Interest income 2846 3215
Cther income 52,846 .
Net loss on fnancial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2 (8,441,736} (29045 127)
Total MNed Loss (8.386.044) {29,041.902)
Expenses
Digribution fees 512 (433.659) (351.571)
AIFM fees 512 (138.583) (156,105)
Organisational expenses ] - -
Oither expenses 9 (54.217) (428.191)
Total Operating Expenses (652,459 (1,135.867)
MNet Operating Loss before Finance
Cost and Tax {9.068,503) (30,177, 769)
Withhoelding Tax 2 - -
Net Operating Loss (9,068 _503) (30,177,769
Total Comprehensive Loss {9, (45, 503) (30.177,769)

Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income {(Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

IDMS Target Matuority DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)*
For the Mnandal vear ended For the Nnancial period ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2021
Nodes LS UsD
Income
Met loss on fnancial assets al fair value
through profit or loss 2 (4.516.152) (5,729,241}
Total MNet Loss {4,516,152) {5,729.241)
Expenses
Distribution fees 512 (701,53 6) (582,156)
AIFM fees 512 (198,661} (164,761)
Organisational expenses 5 {76.506) (245.574)
Cither expenses 9 {71.607T) (341.50M)
Total Operating Expenses (1,048,710 (1,334,000
Met Operating Loss before Finance
Cost and Tax (5,564.862) (7.063.241)
Bank Charge {80) (3513
Withholding Tax 2 - 2
MWet Operating Loss (5,564,042) {7, 064,092)
Total Comprehensive Loss (5,564,942) (7. 064.0%2)

“The sub-fand launched on 30 March 2021,
Income and expenses arose solely from continuing operations

There are no recogmsed gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensave Income.

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 202007 Seiting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)
For the flinancial year ended For the financial year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022
Usp UsD
Opening MNet Assets attributable to
Unitholders 109,533,092 131,832,662
Payment for Units redeemed (22,035,831 (17,385,216
Mel decrease in Met Assels altributable to
Unitholders from operations (5,068, 503) (30,177,769
Closing Met Assets atfributable to
Unitholders 78,428,757 84,265,677

The accompanyving notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(]
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Changes in Equity {Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2021

DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 202007 Seiting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman Sachs  (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)*
For the financial year ended  For the financial period ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2021
UsD USD
Opening MNel Assets attributable to
Unithodders 155,694,127 -
Proceeds of Units issued - 151,474,192
Payment for Units redeemed (A0, 596,003) (12,577.43%)
Met decrease in MNet Assels attributable to
Unitholders from operations (5,564,942) { 7,064,097
Closing Met Assets attributable fo
Unitholders 109,533,092 131,832 662

"“The sub-famnd launched cn 30 March 2021,

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

L&
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)

For the financial vear ended  For the Mnandal year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2022

Usn UsD

Cash Flows lrom Crperating Activities
Decrease in Total Comprehensive (LosshProfit (9,068 503) (30177769
Adjugments to reconcile nel income Lo net cash

provided by operating adivities:
et realised Foreign exchange loss on financial

assels and financial liabilities 1,987,586 3.745,625
Net change in urrealised depreciation on

financial assets and liabiliiies at fair value

through profit or loss 6,453,850 15,295,502
Sale of Ninancial assets and liabilities @ Fair

vahue through profit or loss 22,774,302 18,132,713
Decrease in receivable for investments sold 123,044 20,500
Deorease’{ Inorease) in other receivable 0,568 (425)
Decrease in digrnbution fee payable {14,046) {20.987)
Decrease in AIFM fee payable (3.975) (5.939
{DecreaselIncrease in other payable {13,55T) 326,168
Met Cash Flow from Operating Activities 22,298,569 17,319,388
Cash Flows lrom Financing Activities
Payment for Units redeemed (22.156,175) (18,371.358)
MNet Cash Flow out of Financing Activities (22.156,175) {18.371.358)
MNel Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents 142,394 {1.051.970)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the financial year 25,007 1.253,752
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of

the financial year 167,401 201,782

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021

DMS Target Maturity DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs  {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) Corporate Bonds)*

For the lnancial vear ended For the Mnancial period ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2021

UsD UsD

Cash Flows lrom Operating Activities
Decrease in Total Comprehensive (LossyProfil (5,564, 942) (7,064,092
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Net realised foreign exchange (gan)/loss on

financial azsets and financial habilities {182 518) 139 621
Net change in unrealised depreciation on

financial assets and liabiltiies at fair valoe

through profit or loss 4,698,670 5,589,620
Sale(purchase) of financial assels amd liabilities

At fair value through profit or loss 41,630,913 {137,749, 7659)
Decrease/(Inoresse) Recervable for investments

sold 1453 843 (20,500)
Decrease in other receivable {54,548) .
(DecrenselInorease in distribation fee payable (20 858 59979
(DereasehInarease in AIFM fee payable {5,903) 16,975
Increase in other payvable 13409 400,829
Met Cash Flow from{out of) Operating
Activities 41,978,066 (138.627.337)
Cash Flows lrom Financing Activities
Proceeds of Units isased - 151,474,192
Payment for Units redeemed (42,045,647 (11,593,103)
Met Cash Flow (oul ofy Trom Financing
Activities (42,049.647) 139,551,089
Met (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash

Equivalents (71,581) 1,253,752
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the financial vear/period 96,588
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of

the Minancial year/ period 25047 1,253,752

“The sub-fand launched on 30 March 2021,

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
MNotes to the Audited Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Briongloid Brdge Unit Trost (the “Trost™) was constituted as an [rish umbrella Unit Trost orgamsed
by the Manager and the Trustee wnder the Unit Trusts Act 1990 (the “Act™ ) on 3 June 2020, with the
Fegistered Office at 4th Floor, 35 Shelboume Road, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Ireland. The Trust is
authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland {the “Central Bank™) as a Unit Trust pursnant to the Act.

The Trust is an umbrella fund which may comprise different sub-funds, each with one or more Classes
of Units. Each sub-fund may be constitnted as an open-ended fund, an open-ended fund with limired
liquidity or # closed-ended fund.

Az at 31 December 2022, the Trst had two sub-funds in existence:

Commenced Operations

DMS Tamget Mathwity Setting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman

Sachs Corporate Bonds) 28 July 2020
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) 30 March 2021

Both sub-funds offer two Unit Classes, the USD Unit Class and the AUD Unit Class. The Functional
Currency of the sub-funds are United States Dollar (“USD™), as detaled in Wote 2 of the financial
statements on page 23,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) is a Unit
Trst with a trust term of approximately five years. The trust term refers (o the penod from the
commencement of operation on 28 July 2020 to Fund Maturity Date (*Maturity Date™). The Maturity
Date is 25 July 2025 or such other date & may be determined by the Manager and notified to
Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaining Unils are
redeemed,

DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) 15 a Uit
Trust with a trust term of approximately ten years. The trust temm refers to the period from the
commencement of operation on 30 March 2021 to Fund Maturity Date, The Maturity Date is 31 March
2031 or such other date as may be determined by the Manager and notified to Unitholders, being the
date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaimng Uniis are redeemed.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies and estimation technigues adopted by the sub-funds are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the sub-funds have been prepared in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standard 102: “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Eingdom and Republic of
freland” ("FRS 1027), accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and [nsh statute compnsing
the Unit Trust Act, 1990,

The formeat and cerain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in
FRS 102 so that, inthe opinion of the Alternative Investment Fund Manager {the * AIFM™), they more
appropriately reflect the nature of the sub-funds' business as an investment funds,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have made an
assessment of the Trust's ability to continee as a going concern and are satisfied that the Trust has the
resources (o contimue m operation for a penod of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the nse of estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts repored in the financial statements and accompanying notes, The
AIFM believes that the estimates utilised in financial statements are reasonable and prodent. Actual
resulis conld differ from these estimates. Please refer to MNote 10 (f) for Fair Value Estimation
disclosures.

Investment policy

In order to achieve its investment objective, the sub-funds will invest all of the proceeds from the issue
of Units (after deducting therefrom the costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the
sub-funds and the offenng of Units and a reserve for other charges and expenses pavable out of the
assels of the sub-funds) in cemain performance-linked notes (the *Notes™ ) Lo be issued by Luminis [
Limited, special purpose vehicle domiciled in the Cayman Islands {the “Notes Issuer”). Special purpose
vehicles are companies whose purpose 15 o conduct business such as the 1ssuance of bonds, and are
generally used in the securitisation of assets and the issnance of strucured notes.

The Motes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Clags with the following exposures:

l. Exposure toa portfolio of fived income instaments (the “GS Bonds™) issued by The Goldmarn
Sachs Gronp, Inc (the *GS Bonds Issner” ) and denominated in the cumency of the relevant
Class of Units (the “Fixed Portion™); and

1. Exposure to a synthetic portfolio which provides a return which is linked to the performance of
a basket of certain investment funds (the *Active Portion” or the “Strategy™).

The Strategy consists of four investment funds (the "Underlying Funds”) having individual strategies
and cash minus necessary costs to compose a basket, and aims for stable excess refums in vanous
environments, The weightings to be allocated to each Undedving Fund will be determined upon launch
in order to ensure that the fsk level is equally distibuted between the Underlying Funds (the
“Underlying Basket™).

Accounting for Investments
Investment tranzactions are recorded on a trade date basis, Realised gains and losses on sales of
investments are calculated on a* first in - first o™ {“FIFO™) basis.

The associated foreign exchange movemenis between the date of the purchase and the date of the sale
of financial assets are included in net gan on fnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Valuation of Investments

Om initial application of FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments a reporting entity is
required to apply either a) the full requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and
Ciher Financial Instroments, by the recogmtion and measurement provisions of 1A% 39 Financial
Instruments: Recogrition and only the disclosune requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial
Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, or ¢} the recognition and measurement provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standard (" [FRS™) 9 Financial Instnoments and only the disclosure
requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instraments and Other Financial Instruments. The
sub-funds have chosen to implement b the recogmition and measurement provision of ITAS 39 Financial
Instmuments: Recogrition and only the disclosune requirements of FES 102 relating 1o Basic Financial
Instmuments and Ciher Financial Instruments.

0
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)

In accordance with FRS 102 the sub-funds have classified all of its investments as financial assets or
liabilities designated at fair value throngh profit or loss. Investments are initially recognised o the fir
value of the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recognised directly
inthe Statement of Comprehensive Income, Investments are subsequently remeasured at fair value a
the financial yvear end. Purchazes and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on
which the sub-funds commil (o purchase or sell the assed.

Foreign exchange hedging may be wilized for the benefit of a particular Hedged Class and its cost and
relsted liabilities and'or benefits ghall be for the account of such Class only. Accordingly, any
appreciation or depreciation of the Met Asset Value of the sub-funds resulting from expenses, income,
gains and losses that are attribwable (0 any foreign exchange hedging in respect of a Hedged Class
shall be attributable solely to the Hedged Class to which it relates.

The walue of the assets of each sub-funds shall be determined in respect of each Valuation Date as
follows:

(a) securities, including debt and equity securities, which are quoted, listed or traded on or
under the mles of any market will be valeed at the closing bid price a5 al each Valuation
Point. If the security is nommally quoted, listed or traded on or under the rules of more than
one market, the relevant market will be that which Waystone Management Company (IE )
Limited {the “Manager™ ) determine provides the fairest criterion of value for the security.
If prices for a security quoded, listed or traded on the relevant market are not available at
the relevant time or are unrepresentativie in the opinion of the Manager such security will
be valued at such value as will be estimated with care and good faith as the probable
realization value of such security by the Mamager,

(b} any security, including debt and equity secunties, which 15 not normally quoted, hsted or
traded on or under the rules of a market or in respect of which the Manager determines that
the closing bid price as set out above 15 not representative of its fair market value, will be
valued at its probable realisation value as determined with care and in good faith by the
Manager. The performance linked notes held are priced on a daily basis by a price received
from Goldman Sachs;

() dervative instruments including swaps, interest rate futures contracts and other financial
futures comtracts which are traded on a market will be valued at the setlement price as
determined by the relevant market at the close of business on that market on the Valuation
Drate, provided that where it is not the practice of the relevant market to quote a settlement
price, or if a settlement price is not available for any reason, such instruments will be valued
at their probable reahisation value estimated with care amd good Gath by the Manager,

{dy credit defanli swap instruments which are not dealt on a market will be valned on each
Valuation Drate at the evaluated mean by reference to freely available market quotations
supplied by an independent pricing agent or o the price obtained from the counterparty or
a party appointed by the Manager. All other derivative instruments which are not dealt on
a market will be valued on each Valuation Date at the bid price by reference (o freely
available market quotations supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price
obtained from the counterpanty or a party appointed by the Manager,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)
(e Umits in collective mvestment schemes will be valued on the basis of the latest published
Met Asset Value of such Units. IF such prices are unavailable, the Units will be valued a
their probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager.

(t) assets denominated in a currency other than in the Functional Currency of the relevant sub-
fund shall be converted into the Functiomal Currency @t the mate (whether official or
otherwise ) whach the Manager deems appropriate in the circumstances;

(2) cash deposits and similar assets will be valued @t their face valne together with accmed
interest unless in the opinion of the Manager any adjustment should be made to reflect the
fiair value thereof, and

(hy  realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference belween
disposal proceads or valuation and historc cost, Realised and unrealised gains and losses

on investments ansing during the financial vear are dealt within the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Net galn on financal assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

UsnD USIx
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 31,504 226,315
R ealised (loss) on inviestments and foreign exchange (2,019,390 (43,797}
Total net reallsed (loss)/'gain (1.987 B86) 182,518
Decrease in unrealised appreciation on investments (159,056) (1,723.321)
Decrease in unrealised depreciation on investments (6,294,794 (2.970.349)
Total net decrease in unrealised
appredation{depredation) {6,453, 8500 (4.698.670)
Met (loss) on financial assets at falr value through
profit or loss (8.441,736) (4,516,152}
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Valuation of Investments (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
Net gain on Minancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

3 December 2022 31 December 2021

USD USDy
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 23,622 57415
Fealized (loss) on investments and foreign exchange [3.769.247) (197.036)
Total net realised (loss) (3,745.625) (139,621}
Increase in mmrealised appreciation on investments 423 129
Decrease in unrealised depreciation on investments (25,256,925) (5,588, 749y
Total net decrease in unrealised
appredation/{depredation) (25,299.302) (5, 589.620)
Net (loss) on financial assets at falr value through
profit or loss (29.045127) (5,729.241)

Foreign Exchange Translation

Funettonal and Presentation Curvency

The functional and presentational cwrrency of each sub-fund is US Dollar (U SDT), This is considered
1o be the currency of the primary economic environment of each snb-fund.

Transac fions and Balances

Aszets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional cumrency of the sub-funds are
translated into the functional cwrency at the exchange rates mling at the financial year end date.
Transactions in currencies other than the functional corrency of the sub-funds are translated into the
functicnal currency at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses on
foreign exchange transactions are recogmsed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
determining the result for the financial year. Proceeds from issnance and amounts paid on repurchase
of Units are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions,

Transaction costs

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair value.
Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses ansing
from changes inthe far value of the financial assets or financial Babilities 8 far value through profit
or loss category are presenied in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which
they arise,

Expenses
Expenses are recogmsed on the accnmal bass
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Asset Value Per Unit
The Met Asset Value per Umit is calculated by dividing the Total MNet Assets of the sub-funds by the
number of Units in issne. All Units are issued and repurchased at this price.

The Units can be put back into the sub-fimds at any time for cash equal (o a proportional share of the
sub-funds’ Wet Asset Value. The Umit is carried at the repurchase amount which is payable s the
financial year end date 1f the Umtholder exercized the right to put the Umt back in the sub-funds,

Taxation

Under current law and practice, the sub-funds qualify as an investment undenaking as defined in
Section T39B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, The sub-funds are not chargeable to
Irish tax on its income or capital gains. However, Itish tax can arise on the happening of a *chargeable
event”. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Unitholders or any encashment,
repurchase, redemption, transfer or cancellation of shares and any deemed disposal of Units for Insh
tax purposes ansing as a result of holding Units in the sub-funds for a period of eight years or more.

Mo tax will arise in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Unitholder who:

(1) isan Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 735D of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997,
as amended) who has provided the sub-funds with the necessary signed statutory declarations;
ar

(ii} is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that the necessary signed statutory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Congolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by the
sub-funds.

Capital gains and interest received by the sub-funds may be subject to non-recoverable withholding
tax in the countries of origin,

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cazh comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting shon-term cash commitments rather than of
mvestment or other purposes,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

3 December 2022

Held by: UsD
BEH 230
ANZ, London 57488
BBV A, Madrnd 109,683
167,401

31 December 2021

Held by: UsD
BEH (17}
ANZ, London T.227
Royal Bank of Canada, Toronio 17.497
25007
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Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Held by:

BEH

ANZ, London
BEV A, Madnd

Held by:

BEH

ANE, London

JPMuorgan Chase, MNew York

4. FEES PAYABLE

3 December 2022
UsD

430

38.012

163,340

201,782

31 December 2021
UsD

{15)

6415

1,247,352
1,253,752

[MS Target Maturily Sefting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Professional fees
Service expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

31 December 2022 M December 2021

UsD UsD
25711 31,609
668 932

e 7385
26,379 39936

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Fixed operating expenses
Service expenses
Miscellaneons expenses

31 December 2022 3 December 2021

UsD UsD
681,506 300,953
736 1,132
44,755 28,744
716997 400,829

5. FEES

The fees and charges payable 1o the Manager and the Investment Manager, which will apply to each
sub-fund or to different Classes of Unit for each sub-fund, are specified in the relevant Supplement.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. FEES (Confinued)

Management and Investment Management Fees

In respect of its provision of managememt services to the sub-funds, the Manager receives a
management fee (the “Managzement Fee” ) on a sliding scale at a maximum rate of 0.15% per anmm
of the Net Asset Value of the sub-funds. The Management Fee is subject 1o an annual minimum fee of
USD 125,000 per annum per ¢ach sub-fund. The Management Fee accrues at each Valuation Point and
15 paid monthly i arrears together with any reasonable and documented out of pocket expenses
incurmed by the Manager in the performance of its duties that are not covered by the Management Fee.
The Manager is responsible for paying the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager, the
Admumstrator, the Trustee and the Aonditor (for the annual audit only ). For the financial year ended
31 December 2022, the Manager earned a fee of USD 138,583 (31 December 2021: USD 198,661) of
which USD 10,019 {31 December 2021: USD 13,9%4) was outstanding at financial year end for DMS
Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD
156,105 (31 December 2021: USD 164,761) of which USD 11,036 (31 December 2021; USD 16,975}
was outstanding al financial year end for DM3 Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in
Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds),

Distribution Fees

The Manager has appointed SMBC Tmst Bank Lid (the "Distnbutor”) as the distnbotor in Japan,
responsible for purchasing the Units from the Manager and completing subscription orders placed by
investors in Japan (only) in accordance with Japanese law, Distribution fees of 0.53% per annum of
Met Assel Valoe are payable to the Distnibutors on a per Unit basis, For the financial year ended 31
December 2022, the Distribwtion fee incurred was USD 480,659 (31 December 2021: USD 701,934
for DM S Target Matorty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporste Bonds), out
of which UUSD 35398 was payable af financial year end (31 December 2021 USD 49444 ) and USD
331,571 (31 December 2021: USD 582,156) for DMS Target Maturity Seiting Fund 2103 (Imvesting
in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), ont of which USD 38,992 was payvable at financial year end (31
December 2021 USD 59.979).

Administrator and Trustee Fees

The Administrator and Trostee is entitled to receive fees calculated as a percentage of the Met Asset
Value of each sub-fund for the provision of administration and trustee services respectively. The fees
of the Administrator and the Trostee are charged out of the Management Fee received by the Manager
or out of the assets of the relevant sub-fund as may be specified in the relevan Supplement.

The fees and the expenses of the Administrator and Trestee are pavable monthly in amears, and are
calculated ot & rate of 0,04% for the first USD 1 billion of the aggregate Net Asset Value of the sub-
funds of the Trust, 0.035% on the next USD 1.5 billion and 0.03% above USD 2.5 billion. The
Administrator and Trustee are also entitled to receive additional fees from the sub-fimds to cover any
reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

5. FEES (Confinued)

Agent Securities Company fees

The Agent Secunties Company in Japan is entitled to an annual fee rate of 0.01% of the MNet Assets of
the sub-funds, This fee 1= pavable monthly i arrears and 15 accmed on a daly basis. Any reasonable
distursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agent Securiies Company for client
services carried out on behalf of the sub-funds are borme by the sub-funds. For the financial year ended
31 December 2022, the Agent Secunties Company fee incurred was USD 9,239 (31 December 2021;
UED 13,244) for DMS Target Matanty Seiting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), out of which USD 668 was pavable at financial vear end {31 December 2021; USD 932) and
USD 10,407 (31 December 2021: USD 10,984) for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Imvesting
mn Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), oul of which USD 736 was pavable a1 financial vear end (31
December 2021: USD 1,132).

Anditor's Remuneration

The statmtory audit fee (excluding valne-added tax and ont-of-pocket expenses incwrred by the auditor
in connection with their audit work), which is paid by the Manager on behalf of the sub-fund, for the
financial year amounted to U'SD 22855 (31 December 2021: USD 22,571). There were no other fees
paid 1o the auditors other than the statutory audit fee,

Establishment and Organisational Expenses

The establishment and organisational expenses (including expenses relating to the drafting of the
Prospectus. the negotiation and preparation of the material contracis, the printing of the Prospectus and
the related marketing material, and the fees and expenses of its professional advisers) incwrred
commected with the initial offenng of Units in respect of the sub-funds are nof expected to exceed
Euro 25,000. The financial statement Net Asset Value per Unit is calculated with organisational
expenses being expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which totaled USD ml
(31 December 2021: USD 76,506} for DMS Target Matudty Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in
Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD nil (31 December 2021: USD 245,574) for DMS Target
Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds). For the purpose of
calcnlating the Net Asset Value per Unit for Unithholder dealing, organisational expenses are being
amortised over the first three financial vears of the lifetime of the Funds. USD 15,454 (31 December
2021: USD 92.584) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporste Bonds) and USD 125566 (31 December 2021: USD 193,902) for DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) were amortised in the Unitholders
calculation for the financial vear ended 31 December 2022,

Fixed Operating Expenses

The 2103 Fund incurs cerfaim nurimum operating expenses (being the momamum Management Fees)
during the life of the Fund to the Fund Matusity Date (the “Fixed Operating Expenses™). In order to
ensure that Unitholders are treated as fairly a8 possible with respect to such Fixed Operating Expenses
(and to ensure that in the event of redemptions by Unitholders prior to the Fund Maturity Date,
remaining Unitholders do not bear a higher proportion of the Fived Operating Expenses). the Fund has
calcnlated the Fixed Operating Expenses and such Fixed Operating Expenses shall be amortised over
the first 3 years of the Fund.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Fixed Operating Expenses incumed was USD
180,553 (31 December 2021: USD 300,953) for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing

in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of which USD 681,506 was payable s financial year end (31
Decemiber 2021: USD 300,953,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

6. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

There were no soft commission amangement s entered into during the financial vear ended 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

7. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The following Umnit Classes were avalable for subscnption dunng the Initial Offer Period:

Class Currency Imitial Minimum Minimum Minimum
Denomination | OfTer Initial Subsequent Redem ption
Price Subscription | Subscription Amount
per Unit /Minimum Holding
EE’;I‘-E“ UsD USD 1000 | LISy 150,000 MNIA 1 Uit
]
2E§ i AUD AUD 10,00 | AUL 200,000 N/A 1 Unit

Investors must subscribe into a Class in the enrrency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
payments are also made in the curency in which the relevant Class is denominated,

Following the end of the Intial Offer Perod, it 15 not anticipated that further subscriptions into the sub-
funds will be accepted, save that the Directors may, in their sole discretion, decide to declare a
Subscrption Day on any Business Day. In such circumstances, Units in the sub-funds will be available
for subscmption at the Net Asset Value per Umnit (less any duties and charges) on the relevant
Subscription Day and the Directors will confirm details of the relevant Subseription Cut-OfF Time and
date by which settlement should be made in respect of any such subscription.

A Umnithelder may submit a redempdion request, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-OfF
Time. Units will be redeemed at the Met Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class onthe relevant
Redemption Day. The aggregate redempiron proceeds payable to a Umtholder will be rounded down
to the neared whole USD 001, in the case of the USD Unit Class and AUD 0,01, in the case of the
AUD Unit Class. The benefit of any such rounding will be retained for the account of the sub-funds.
For the purposes of caloulating the redemption price of a Umit, the Trustee and‘or the Manager may
diduct from the Net Asset Value per Unit an amotnt which itthey consider(s) to be an appropriate
allowance to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the sub-funds
in realising assets or closing oul positions to provide sub-funds 1o meet redemption requests on a
particular Redemption Day.

It is generally expected that redemption proceeds will be circulated to Unitholders within 5 Business
Days of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaning Umnits in the sub-fands will be compulsorily repurchased on the Funds Matunty Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent to Unitholders within 5 Business Davs of redemption.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

7. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

3 December 2022 31 December 2021
USD Unit AUD Unit USD Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Mumbers of Units ontstanding at
the beginning of financial year 10, 120,945 1,738 496 13419576 2814490
Mumber of Units issued - - - -
Mumber of Units redeemed (2.185,079) (343,123) (3.298631) (1075994
Numbers of Uinits outstanding
at the end of fnandal year 7,935 866 1.395.373 10,120,945 1,738,496

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

3 December 2022 31 December 2021
USD Unit AUD Unit USD Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Numbers of Units outstanding at
the beginning of financial year 12,726,668 1.504,927 . .
Mumber of Units issued - - 13,862,114 1.687.527
Humber of Units redeemed {1,923 946) (266,534)  (1.135448) (1826000
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of Minandal vear 10,802,722 1,238,393 12,726,668 1,504,927

Payable for sub-fund Units repurchased as at 31 December 2022 15 presented in the Statement of
Financial Position and amounts to USD 11,499 (31 December 2021: USD 131,842) for DM S Target
Maiurity Seiting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 2,193
(31 December 2021: USD 984,335) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in
Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds).

8 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The distmbution policy for the sub-funds will be determined by the Manager from time to time and set
out in the relevant Supplement.

The sub-funds' distnbution policy 15 not to make distnbutions (o Unitholders but mstead to remvest all
the sub-fund's net income and realised capital gains. Accordingly, an investment in the sub-fund may
not be suitable for investors seeking curment retums,

Any dividend paid on a Unit of the sob-funds that has not been claimed within six years of its
declaration will be forfeited and will be paid for the benefit of the sub-funds, Mo interest will be paid
on any dividend,

During the financial vear ended 31 December 2022 there were no distnibutions declared.
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9. OTHER EXPENSES

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2022

Professional fees
Service expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

31 December 2021

UsD UsD
29,282 35,566
6,239 13,244
15,6596 22.797
54,217 71,607

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

3 December 2022

Fixed operating expenses
Service expenses
Miscellanecns expenses

31 December 2021

UsD UsD
380,553 300,953
10,407 10,984
37.231 29,572
418.19 341,509

10. FINANCIAL RISKS

The sub-funds' investment activities expose them to the various types of risks which are associated
with the financial instrements and markets in which they invest. The Trust's risk management policies
seel to mirimise the potential adverse effects ofthese risks on each sub-fund financial performance in

order to satisfy the investment objectives of the sub-finds.

There iz no guarantee that in any time period the sub-funds® investment objective will be successful.
Investors should be aware that the value of Units may fall as well as nse, In patticular, an investment
in the sub-funds is subject to investment risk, including the possible loss of the entire principal amonnt
that an investor may invest. The value of Units may rise or fall, as the capital value of the securities in
which the sub-funds invests may fluctuate, The investment income of the sub-funds is based on the
income earned on the securities it holds, less expenses incurred. Therefore, the sub-fumds' investment
income may be expected to fluctuate in response to changes in such expenszes or income.

The main risks ansing from the sub-funds' financial instraments are market risk {including price nisk
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk ), lquidity risk and credit nsk.

(a) Market Risk

Market risk anses mainly from uncerainty abowt fidure prices of financial instruments held,
specifically from other price movements, It represents the potential loss the sub-fumls may suffer
through holding market positions in the face of adverse price movements.

The sub-funds are subjects to market price risk. The value of the sub-funds’ investments will go up and

down as prices of the financial instruments floctuate.

The sub-fimds' financial instruments are snsceptible to market price risk from uncenainty about futnre
prices of financial instruments, All securities in which the sub-funds invest present a nsk of loss of
capital. See Statement of Investments on pages 9 and 10 for details of the sub-funds exposire to market
price risk, The sub-funds manage price risk by using varous investment strategies,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

{a) Market Risk {Continued)

An merease of 102 in Gar value due to changes in valuathion assumplions of financial assels as a the
reporting date would have increased the net assets aitnbutable to the sub-fund and profit for the
financial vear by USD 7,833,112 (31 December 2021; USD 10.967.027) for DMS Target Maturity
Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 8484,269 (31
December 2021: USD 13,204,103) for DM S Target Maturity Seiting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds). A decreaze of 10% would have had an equal and opposite impact.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Country %o of Investments Industry %a of Investments
Cayman Islands 100,00 Financial 100,00

DMS Targel Malurity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Country %o of Investments Industry %a of Investments
Cayman Islands 10000 Financial 10000

() Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate rigk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates. It will affect fure cash Qows
or the fair values of financial instruments. At the 31 December 2022 and &l 31 December 2021, the
sub-funds do not have a matenal exposure to interest rate nsk.

{ch Ligquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the sub-funds may not be able to settle or meet its obligations
om time or at a reasonable price.

The AIFM maimtans an adequate and documented lgquidity management policy in accordance with
the requirements of Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the * AIFMD™). The AIFM's
liquidity management policy includes such procedures as are necessary to enable the AIFM to asgess
and monitor the liquidity rsk to which the sub-funds and Trst are or may be exposed (including
conducting regular siress tests wnder normal and exceptional hquadity condifions) and 1o ensure that
the lquidity profile of the investments of the sub-funds comply with the Trust's underlying obligations.

The Trust's policy to manage ligquidity is to have sufficient hquidity in the sub-funds 10 meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions withowut incurming undue
losses or risking damage.

The Trust assesses the liquidity profile of each sub-fund consistent with its underlying obligations and
redemption policy during the lifecycle of the sub-fund including at their launch. The Tmst ensures that
liquidity thresholds which are proportionate to the redemption obligations and liabilities of the sub-
fund are set.

A liguidity measurement methodology is in place to assess both the asset side and the lability side. On
the asset side, the methodology is based on a ime-to-liguidate measure and a modelled market valoe
adjustment, based on a series of quantitative variables for different asset claszes. The model takes into
account the expected redemption profile of the sub-find and provides relevant estimates, Thus, the
methodology provides a clear route to porifolio managers on projected cash fGows in the event of
portfolio (full or partial) liquidation.

The credit terms for settlement of the liabilities of the sub-funds are generally within three months or

less.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(d) Credit Risk
Crodit nsk 15 the nsk that the counterpanty (o a financial mstrument will fal to discharge an obligation
of commitment that it has entered into with the Trust. The Investment Manager assesses and measures
the risk of each investment on its mernts and tailors itz credit policy and mondtering accerdingly on a
regular basis,

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset at
the reporting date.

Brown Brothers Hamman Trustee Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Trustee and Depositary 1o the
Tzt Cash held via accounts opened on the books of Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (*BBEH") are
obligations of BEH. Accordingly, while BBH is responsible for exercising reasonable care in the
administration of such agency cash accounts where it has appointed the agent (Le. in the case of cash
comespondent banks and sub-custodians ), it i2 not liable for their repayment inthe event that the agent.
by reason of its bankmptcy, insolvency or otherwise, fails 1o make repayment. Brown Brothers
Harmman & Co. has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2021: A+) as issued by Fitch.

The inability (or perceived inability) of issners to make timely payments of interest and principal may
make the values of secunities approximate only to the values placed on such securities, In the absence
of a liguid trading market for cerain securities it may not be possible to establish the fair value of such
securities.

The Motes Issuer is a special purpose company which dees not have substantial assets of its own (o
suppoert its obligations under the Notes, Amounts due to the sub-funds will only be paid with funds
paid to the Notes lssuer under any charged agreement(s) and any charged assets. Therefore, the sub-
funds assume full credit nsk of the Motes Issner, any counterparty and the obligos) of any charged
assels,

The Mates will provide the sub-funds and each Uit Class with the exposure 1o a pontfolio of fixed
income instruments (the " GS Bonds™) issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Ine (the *GS Bonds
Issuer™) with a long term credit rating of & (31 December 2021: A) as issued by Fitch.

As at 3] December 2022, the issuer and counterparty for performance-linked notes held by the sub-
funds are Luminis I Limited (“the Notes Issner” ). While MaplesFS Limited ("MF3") is the registered
owner of the Motes lssuer's ordinary shares, these are held subject to a Declaration of Tmst ("DOT™),
Under the DOT, MFS holds the Motes Issuers shares on trus for the benefit of a "Qualified Chariry™
{as defined in the DOT) which iz legally the ultimate beneficial owner {"UBO") of the trust assels
which comprises solely the shares orthe economic value of the shares once the Motes lssuer is formally
liquidated. Typically, the nominal value of these tst assets would be less than USS1,000. There are
no bearer shares in the legal structure.

The sub-funds’ cash iz swept on a mightly basis to pre-approved financial institufions. As at 31
December 2022, the institutions where the sub-funds’ cash was held and their respective credit mtings,
a that date, are listed below:

Institution Short Term Credit Indicator
ANZ, London Upper Medium Grade
BBV A, Madnd Lower Medium Grade

32
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)

For the ﬁnmc-_ial_}-mn' ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(&) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency sk is the nisk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of the sub-funds’ investments
will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Certain of the sub-funds” assets,
liahilities, income and expenses are denominated in currencies other than its functional cummency, Asa
resull, movement in exchange rates may affect the value of those ems. The Investment Manager

momters this risk on an ongoing basis,

The tables below set out the carrying amount of financial instroments in each currency:

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at 31 December 2022

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{USL¥) {USIY) (LS
Financial Assels 5471,185 70040867 T8.312,052
Finandal Liabiliiies - (83,295) {83,295}
8,471,185 69,957,572 T8.428,757

As al 3 December 2021
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USIx¥ (USIM {USIN
Finandal Assets 12,034,303 97, 73,005 1059, 768,308
Finandal Liabilities - (235216} (235.216]
12,034,303 97,498, 7RY 109,533,092

[¥MS Target Maturily Sefting Fund 2103 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As al 31 December 2022

ALUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USI¥) {(USI¥ {USIY)
Finandal Assets 5,886,269 T8 158 626 85,044,895
Financial Liabilities - {779.218) (779.218)
5,886,269 78379408 84,265,677

Asat 31 December 2021
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD¥) {USIy) (UsI)
Finandal Assels 10, 100, 706 123,1594,074 133,294,780
Finandal Liabilities - (1462118 (1,462,118)
140,100, TG 121,731,956 131,832 662

As ol 31 December 2022, had the AUD strengthened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all other
varables held constant, this wonld have an approximate effect of USD 423,559 (31 December 2021:
USD 601,715) for DM S Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) and USD 294,313 (31 December 2021: USD 505,035) for DMS Target Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds) on the Statement of Comprehensive Income ofthe sub-

fund.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(f) Fair Value Estimation
The sub-fund has classified far value measurements using a Far value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs nsed in making the measurements.

FRS 102 Section 2A.1 on “Fair Value Disclosure™ requires disclosure relating to the far value
hierarchy in which fair value measurements are categorised for assets and liabilities. The disclosures
are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the mputs wsed in valuation techmques to measure
fair value. In March 2006 amendments were made (o paragraph 3422 of this FRS, revising the
dizclosure requirements for financial institutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements with
those i [FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and lastorical practice with those in Insh GAAP,

Financial asseis and liabilities are measured in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. The
fair value measurements are categonsed within a three-level hierarchy. The valuation hierarchy is
based upon the relative observability and reliability of inputs to the valuation of each of the sub-funds’
investments. The inputs or methodology used for valuing secunities are not necessarily an indication
of the risk associated with investing in those securities. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — The nnadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities that the sub-
fund can access at the measurement date.

The types of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 1 generally include actively iraded domestic and
certain foreign equity securities, certain U 5. government obligations, denvatives actively traded ona
national secunties exchange (such as some fitures and oplions), shares of exchange traded funds (even
if their investments are valued using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs).

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices incleded withon Level 1 that are observable (1e. developed
using market dataj for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

These include investment-grade corporate bonds and cenain non-U.5. soversign obligations, listed
equities, mutual funds, aquity-linked notes and over the counter denvatives. As level 2 investments
include positions that are not traded in active markeis and’or are subject (o transfer restrictions.
valustions may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transterability, which are generally based
on available market mformation.

Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable (Le. for which market data is unavailable) for the aszet or liability.

Thetypes of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 3 generally include, but are not limited to. certain
delt securitics (such as assel-backed, mongage-backed, loans and sovereign debt) and denvatives even
though they are valued nsing broker quotes; cerain debt securities and derivatives adjusted by a
specified discount for liquidity or other considerations; certain sovereign debd securities valued nsing
comparable securities issued by the sovereign adjusted by a specified spread; securities whose trading
has been suspended or that have been de-listed from their corrent primary trading exchange valued at
the most recent available markel or quoted price; securities in default or bankmpicy proceedings for
which there is no curment market quotation valued at the most recent available market or quoted price;
potential litigation recoveries and interests related 1o bankruptey  proceedings, third-party investment
funds where wvalnations are provided by fund sponsors amd which are adjusted for liquidity
considerations as well as the timing of the receipt of information and certain securities that are valued
using a price from a comparable security related to the same issoer.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(f) Fair Value Estimation {Continued)

The level in the far value hierarchy within which the Far value measuwrement 15 categonsed 15
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, The significance of an input is assessed against the fair valne measurement in it entirety.

If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unotservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 2 of the far value luerarchy, Assessing
the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgement by the Investment
Manager. The Investment Manager considers observable data to be that market data that is readily
available, regularly distributed or updated. reliable and verifiable. not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market,

The following tables provide an analysis of the far value lnerarchy of the sub-funds' financial assets,
measured al fair value at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

M December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD USD USD UsD
Performance-linked notes - - 78,322,261 78,322,261
Total - - 78,321,261 78,323,261
31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Aszets UsSD USD USD UsD
Performance-linked noles - - 1M, 538,299 1059, 538,299
Tolal : = 10059, 538 299 109,538,299

DMS Targel Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2022 Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Asgets USD USD UsD USD
Performance-linked notes - - 34, 842 688 24,842 688
Total - 84, 842688 84,842 688
31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD USD LS LS
Performance-linked notes - - 132,020,528 132,020,528
Total : 5 132,020,528 132,020,528
35
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)

(f) Fair Value Estimation {Continued)

The Sub-Fund's assets and halahties not measured a far value include cash, short-term receivables
and pavables and net assets attributable o holders of redeemable panticipating shares. The respective
balances are carried at values that reflect a reazonable approximation of their fair value. In accordance
with the requrements of FRS 102, cash balances are classified as Level 1 and all other assets and
linkalities are claszified as Level 2

Transfers imto and ot of levels are recogmised at the end of the reporting vear. There were no matenal
transfers into or oul of Level 3 dunng the financial year ended 31 December 2022 or 31 December
2021,

The table below shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances (o the ending balances for fair
value measurements of level 3 financial assets of the fair value hierarchy.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fond 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

USD UsD

Crpening, B alance 109,538,299 155,685,364

Sales during the fAnancial year (22,775,094) (41,627,608)

Realiged (losses)/ gains on investments (1,985 221) 166,693
MWet change in unrealised depreciation on

investments at fair value throngh profit or loss {6,454,723) {4.686,1500

Closing balance TH322.261 109,538,299

As gt 31 December 2022, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,916,113 (31 December 2021: 5476,915) on
the net assets atinbutable to the sub-fund.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)*

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

UsD UsD

Cpemng Balance 132,020,528 -

Purchases during the financial year - 150,841,205

Sales during the financial yvear (18.132.975) (13,120,646)

Realised losses on investments (3,744,521) (100,701
Met change in unrealized depreciation on

investments at fair value throngh profit or loss (25,300, 344) (5,585,330

Closing balance 84,842 688 132,020,528

*The sub-fund launched on 30 March 2021,

As @t 31 December 2022, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due to changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 4,242,134 (31 December 2021: 6,601,026) on

the net assets attnbutable 1o the sub-fund,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

10. FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(f) Fair Value Estimation {Continued)

Valuation methodology

The sub-funds invest into performance-linked Motes, the fair value of which is determined by Goldman
Sachs, using a valuation model. The key observable inputs and unobservable inpuis to this valuation
muodel are as follows:
*  Key observable inputs
o Interest rates
o G5 credit spread
o Level of the strategy as well as its components
*  Eey unobservable input
o Implied volatility
o Discount rates and yields

Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The
valuation method being used for fnancial assets held by the sub-funds thas are classified as Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy 15 the use of proxy pocing techniques by Goldman Sachs, The yield being nsed
in the prosxy pricing is considered the most significant unobservable input wsed which impacts the price
and related fair value of the performance linked notes.

11. EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rtes have been nsed wo translate assets and labilities in correncies other than
USD at financial year end:

As at As at

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
AUD 1.4746 1.3786
EUR 1.0705 1.1370

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the Manager are not aware of any transactions with related persons during the financial
vear ended 31 December 2022 and for the financial year ended 31 December 2021, other than those
disclosed in these financial statements. The AIFM, Waystone Management Company ([E) Limited, the
Investment Manager, Waystone Asset Management {[E) Limited, the Agent Securities Company in
Goldman Sachs Japan Co,, Ltd are regarded as related parties of the sub-funds under FES 102 *Related
Party Disclosures™.

Mz, Denise Coughlan, Ms. Samantha Mevlit, Mr, Keith Hazley, Mr. Jim Allis and Ms, Rachel Wheeler
are Directors of the Manager and also employees of related paries to the Trust.

Mz, Siobhan Moloney, Mr. Conor MacGunness and Mr, Cammhghin O Donnell are Directors of the
Mamager and also employees of a related pary to the Trust. Ms. Siobhan Moloney resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Manager on 23 May 2022, Mr. Conor MacGuinness and Mr, Caoimhghin
O Dronnell resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 14 December 2022

All related parties are transacted at arm’s length,
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Fees incumed with relasted parties durng the financial year are disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Amounts pavable (o related paries ol the Anancial vear are disclosed in
Note 5.

13, STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolio positions for the financial yvear has not been presented though
the details may be obtained free of charge from Waystone Management Company (1E) Limited.

14. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

The Met Asset Value per redeemahble participating unit is calcalated by dividing the total net assets (as
calcnlated for pricing purposes) of the sub-funds by the number of redeemable participating Units in
iszne. The Net Asset Value per redeemable participating umit reported in the Statement of Financial
Poaition 15 that used for financial statement purposes,

For the purposes of the financial statements, all organisational expenses, including fees paid to the
professional advizors of the sub-funds, are expensed in the financial year they are incwred in
accordance with FRS 102, Organisational expenses were charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Imcome. The tables below illustrate the reconciliation between the Net Asset Value for finmncial
statement purposes and the Met Asset Value per Unit for Unitholder dealing purposes.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As ai As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
UsD LS
Met Asset Value for fimancial
statement plrposes T8428.757 109,533,082
Add: Cummulative additional
organisational expenses written off 15,454 92,584
Met Asset Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes T8444.211 109.625.676

33
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

14. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT (Continued)
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Asal As al
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
LS USD
Met Asset Value for financial
stalement purposes 84265677 131,832,662
Add: Cumulative additonal
organisational expenses written of T 125,566 193,902
Met Asset Valee for Unitholder
dealing purposes 84,391,243 132,026,564

15. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

COin 24 February 2022, Russian forces advanced into Ukraine launching a large-scale military invasion.
The conflict continues Lo escalate with devastating implications for the region both politically and
economically in addition to the human tragedies. In an attempt to deter the Russian advances, the EU,
the United States, and other NATO countnes have imposed severe sanctions on the Russian econemy.

The effect of these sanctions has led to sharp increases in the prce of commodities, a depreciation in
Russian Ruble, the assets of Russia's central bank have been frozen, travel restrictions imposed, and
certain powerful individuals have been targeted for their association to the Kremlin, The direct and
indirect impacts of this situation are being closely monitored as it pertains to the sub-funds bat is not
expected (o impact on its stalus 85 @ going concer,

Ms. Siobhan Moloney resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 23 May 2022

Ms, Samantha Mevlit, Mr, Keith Hazley, Mr. Jim Allis and Ms. Rachel Wheeler were appointed to the
Board of Directors on 1 November 2022,

Mr. Conor MacGuirmess and Mr. Cacimhghin O'Donnell resigned from the Board of Directors on 14
December 2022,

COm 1 December 2022, the address of the Investment Manager. the Manager and AIFM, the Company
Secretary and the registered office of the Trust changed 1o $th Floor, 35 Shelboume Road, Ballsbridge,
Dublin 4, D04 A4EQ.

There were no other significant events occurring during the firancial vear ended 31 December 2022,
16. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

The direct and indirect impacts of the conflict in Ukraine are being contimuously monitored as if pertains
1o the sub-funds, To date the conflict in Ukraine has not had a significant impact on the performance
of the sub-funds.

There were no other sigmificant events occurring after 31 December 2022 requiring financial statement
disclosure.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Notes to the Audited Financial Statements {Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

17. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the M amager on 15 June 2023,

40
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Investments
Asg ot 31 December 2022

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Number of Fair Value o of Net
Shares Security Description UsD Assets

Performance-linked notes (31 December 20212

j LEURITIR
Cavman Islands
RO, OO0 Liernimis I Limited, USD Class 69908418 8213
14,116,570 Luminis I Limited, AUD Class B.413.843 10,73
Total Investments T8,322.261 99,86
Cither assets and labilities 1 05,454 014
Net Assets attributable to Unitholders 78428757 LRI
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2023
78,884,814 10,580,820
21,830 2,928
78,862,984 10,577,892
7,866,122.894
1,389,313.655
8.97 1,203
9.01 802
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2023
4,490,002 6,470
4,490,002
2018 30 2023 30
2019 11 800,000
2020 24 700,000
2022 10 22 2
1,500,002
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Waystone Governance Ltd

AIFMD  UCITS

FATCA CRS

DMS Governance Europe Ltd
Waystone Governance Ltd
DMS

AIFMD

6,023,704,105.65

23,540,681,110.77

8,388,966,440.03

100,496,442 .32

AlF

237 33,131,182,330.13

UCITS

42 4,922,665,768.63

175/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131

2023 28
148.04
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IE
2022 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

10 600 89
11 544,220 80,566 484,337 71,701
544,820 80,655 484,337 71,701
12 20,888,050 3,092,267 6,938,024 1,027,105
13 17,358,095 2,569,692 7,459,117 1,104,248
38,246,145 5,661,959 14,397,141 2,131,353
38,790,965 5,742,614 14,881,478 2,203,054
15 4,490,002 664,700 4,490,000 664,700

15 3,600,000 532,944
15 16,234,938 2,403,420 5,652,084 836,735
24,324,940 3,601,064 10,142,084 1,501,434
14 14,466,025 2,141,550 4,739,394 701,620
38,790,965 5,742,614 14,881,478 2,203,054

2023 28 2023 28
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IE
2022 12 31 2021 12
55,760,548 8,254,792 24,644,354
(27,192,786)  (4,025,620) (8,523,481)  (1,261,816)
28,567,762 4,229,171 16,120,873
(16,404,300)  (2,428,493) (14,147,229)  (2,094,356)
12,163,462 1,800,679 1,973,644
(41,380) (6,126) (44,650)
12,122,082 1,794,553 1,928,994
(1,539,228) (227,867) (267,944)
10,582,854 1,566,686 1,661,050
2022 12 31 2021 12
10,582,854 1,566,686 1,661,050
10,582,854 1,566,686 1,661,050
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IE
2022 12 31
2022 4,490,000 664,700 - - 5,652,084 836,735 10,142,084 1,501,434
- - - - 10,582,854 1,566,686 10,582,854 1,566,686
2 0 - - - - 2 0
- - 3,600,000 532,944 - - 3,600,000 532,944
2022 12 31 4,490,002 664,700 3,600,000 532,944 16,234,938 2,403,420 24,324,940 3,601,064
2021 4,490,000 664,700 - - 3,991,034 590,833 8,481,034 1,255,532
- - - - 1,661,050 245,902 1,661,050 245,902
2021 12 31 4,490,000 664,700 - - 5,652,084 836,735 10,142,084 1,501,434
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IE
2022 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

10,582,854 1,566,686 1,661,050 245,902
41,380 6,126 44,650 6,610
1,539,228 227,867 267,944 39,666
302 45 - -
192,567 28,508 112,014 16,583
12,356,331 1,829,231 2,085,658 308,761
12 (13,943,775)  (2,064,236) (102,624) (15,192)
14 8,406,110 1,244,441 498,105 73,739
6,818,666 1,009,435 2,481,139 367,308
(148,646) (22,006) (277,281) (41,049)
6,670,020 987,430 2,203,858 326,259
11 (328,762) (48,670) (354,794) (52,524)
10 (902) (134) - -
(329,664) (48,803) (354,794) (52,524)
(41,380) (6,126) (44,650) (6,610)
15 2 0 - -
15 3,600,000 532,944 - -
3,558,622 526,818 (44,650) (6,610)
9,898,978 1,465,445 1,804,414 267,125
7,459,117 1,104,248 5,654,703 837,122

13 17,358,095 2,569,692 7,459,117 1,104,248
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(i)

30 12

Giii)  IFRS

FVOCI
FVTPL

FVOCI FVTPL
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FVTPL
FVTPL
FVTPL

ECL
ECL

12 ECL )

ECL
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2.17
1ASB
3.
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
55,760,548 24,644,354
55,760,548 24,644,354
AIFM UcITS
C NAV )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
49,497,233 19,362,922
4,559,136 3,912,129
181,641 150,533
1,358,332 1,218,770
164,206
55,760,548 24,644,354
4.
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1,539,756 1,218,222
421,650 360,499
25,231,380 6,944,760
27,192,786 8,523,481
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

66,391 47,506

300,000 299,990

6,573,879 5,182,950

16 7,158,436 7,602,138
154,603 74,338

302

192,567 112,014

1,958,122 828,293

16,404,300 14,147,229

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

47,705 43,060
18,686 4,446
66,391 47,506

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

46,621 30,967
302
192,567 112,014
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1,515,260 242,729
23,968 25,215
1,539,228 267,944
12,122,082 1,928,994
12.50 2021 12.50

1,515,260 241,124
1,605
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23,968 25,215
1,539,228 267,944

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
52 41

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
5,407,039 4,238,559
567,150 415,455
374,173 310,175
136,969 107,247
88,548 101,514
6,573,879 5,182,950

337,275 2021 9,637
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9.
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

300,000 299,990
* 296,250 465,531
93,618
50,673 65,783
31,625 46,000
17,138 18,375
9,668 16,020
705,354 1,005,317

* 146,819 2021 1,927

2022 12 31
112,500 2021 75,000
10.
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

11,570 11,570

902
12,472 11,570
11,570 11,570

302
11,872 11,570

600
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
756,726 401,932
328,762 354,794

1,085,488 756,726
121,044 9,030
192,567 112,014
313,611 121,044
771,877 635,682
227,657 151,345
544,220 484,337
771,877 635,682

328,762 2021 343,815
0 2021 10,979
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

4,480,831 1,976,198
413,065 1,106
15,766,497 4,730,984
70,061

8,330

227,657 151,345
20,888,050 6,938,024
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
14,487,854 7,459,117
2,870,241
17,358,095 7,459,117
A2 2021 A2
A3
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
455,696 361,787
10,702,710 4,021,481
1,045,055 95,383
173,560 100,060
225,505 148,270
12,413
530,565
1,332,934
14,466,025 4,739,394
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
100,000,000 100,000,000
4,490,002 4,490,000
4,490,002 4,490,000
2021 12 31
3,600,000 2021 0
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

5,652,084 3,991,034
10,582,854 1,661,050
16,234,938 5,652,084
2008
100
2021
2021
IE
2,385,206 2021 4,292,239
IE
500,004
326,970 2021 471,267
IE
2021 31,250
UK
2021 632,072
733,586 2021 1,593,907
283,881 2021 81,399
COE

USA
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77,716

2021

32,716

12

14

69,200

8,699

31

2021

2021

0

0

UK

UK
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IT
755,083 2021 0
UK 362,132
IE
IE 0 2021 315
0 2021 791
150,409 2021 0
IE 262,656 2021 0
0 2021 3,060
257,731 2021 9,665
IE 87,664 2021
0 2021 4,759
137,734 2021
811 2021 0
IE 4,681 2021 0
77,801 2021 0
UK 100,471 2021 0
29,060 2021
IE 90,532 2021 0
258,570 2021 0
146,819 2021 1,927
14 2022 12
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17.
18.
19.
2022 12 31
2021 12 31

20.

CBI

cBI EU
2013/36/EU (EV) 575/2013
13,067,870 2021 6,224,284
2022 12 31 13,237,075
2021 6,723,741

21.
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0 2021 0
4,480,831 2021
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
1,523,076 1,122,872
2,262,938 478,359
273,224 372,884
421,593 2,083
4,480,831 1,976,198
2023 28
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2022

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

Notes € £
Non-Current Assets
Fiture, fitings & equipment 10 600 -
Intangible assets 11 544,230 484, 337
544,820 484,337
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 12 20,888,050 6,938 024
Cash and cash eguivalents 13 17,358,095 7459 117
38,246,145 14,387,141
Total Assets 38,790,865 14,881 478
Equity and Liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the com pany
Called up share capital 15 4,490,002 4,490,000
Capital contribution 15 3,600,000 =
Retained eamings 15 16,234,938 5,652,084
Total Equity 24,324,940 10,142,084
Trade and otheér payables 14 14,466,025 4,738,384
Total Equity and Liabllities 38,790,965 14,881,478

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behall by:

_;:ﬂﬁum@ G Mo —

James Allls Samanina nevim
Director Director
Date: 28 April 2023 Date: 28 April 2023
The notes on pages 15 1o 31 form part of these financial stabemeants 12
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administraive expenses

Operating profit

Interest payable and similar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on proft on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

Profit for the financial year

Total Profit or Loss and Cther Comprehensive
Income for the financial year

All amounts redate to continuing ocperations,

Hotes

Financial Year Financial Year
Ended Ended

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

€ £

55,760,548 24,544 354
(27,192,746) (8,523, 481)
28,567,762 16,120,873
(16,404, 300) (14,147,229
12,163,462 1,873,644
{41,380 {44,650)
12,122,082 1,928 884
(1,539,228) (267.944)
10,542,854 1,661,050
Financial Year Finamcial Year
Ended Ended

3 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

€ €

10,532,854 1,661,050
10,582,854 1,661,050

Tha notes on pages 15 to 31 form part of these financial statements
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

Share Capital Retained
capital contribution earnings Total
€ € € €
Balance at 1 January 2022 4,490,000 - 5,652,084 10,142,084
Total Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income for the financial year
Profit for the financial year . - 10,582,854 10,582,854
Transactions with Owners, recorded directly
in Equity
lssue of sedinary shares 2 - - 2
Additional capital contributicn . 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
Balance at 31 December 2022 4,490,002 3,600,000 16,234,938 24,924,840
— —— E—
Balance at 1 January 2021 4,490,000 - 3,891,034 8,481,034
Total Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income for the financial year
Prefit for the financial year - - 1,661,050 1,661,050
Balance at 31 December 2021 4,490,000 - 5,652 084 10,142,084
L] NS _—_————= _————
The notes on pages 15 to 31 form part of these fnancial statemants 13
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Notes € €
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the financial year 10,582,854 1,661,050
Adiugtments for:
Interest payable and similar charges 41,380 44,650
Tax on profit on ordinary activities T 1,530,228 267 944
Depreciation 5 Joz2 -
Amortisation 5 192,567 112,014
12,356,331 2,085,658
Mowvements in working capdal
Mowvement in trade and other recesvables 12 {13,943,7735) {102,624)
Mowvement in trade payables 14 8,406,110 488 105
Cash generated from operating actvities 6,818,666 2,481,138
Tax paid (148,648) (277,281)
Mt cash generated from operating acthvities 6,670,020 2 203,858
Cash Nows from investing activities
Deferred contract costs 1 (328,762) (354, T94)
Fixtures and Fittings 10 (902) -
Met cash used in investing activities (329, 664) (354, 794)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (41,380 {44,650
lssue of equity share capital 15 2 -
Additional capital contributions 15 3,600,000 .
Mot cash generated fremf(used in) financing actviies 3,558,622 {44, 650)
Het increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,898,978 1,804, 414
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of linand al year 7,450,117 5,654,703
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 13 17,358,095 7459117
Tha notes on pages 15 to 31 form part of these financial statements 14
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
1. Reporting entity

Waystone Management Company {IE) Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in the
Republic of Ireland. The Company is tax resident in Ireland. The address of its registered office s 35 Shelbourne
Road Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, D04 A4ED.

2. Accounting policies

These financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Financal Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union (or “IFRS).

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are applied consistently in the preparation of these
financial staternents are set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The fnancial staterments are prepared on the going concermn basis, under the historical cost convention excapt
as modified by the accounting policies below, and comply with Insh Statute comprising the Companies Act 2014
{as amended), and the requirements of IFR.S.

The Board of Directors {or the *Directors™) are satizfied with the performance ofthe business during the financial
year. Az a result of the ongoing activity, the Directors are satisfied that it iz appropriate to prepare the financial
staternents on & going concem basis,

The Directors have assessed the performance of this entty and are satisfed that there iz a reasonable
expectation that it will continue to be proftable for the foresesable future.

2.2 Functional and presentation cumency and foreign cumency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Euro, denoted by the symbal €, which is also the funcional currency
of the Compamy.

Foreign currency transactions during the finandal year have been translated at the rate of exchange using a daily
transaction rate generated in the accouning sofware. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than Euro are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the Staternent of Financial Position date. The
resulting profits or losses are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
Men-monatary assets and labilties are translated &t hstons rates.

2.3 Basic financial instruments
(i} Trade and cther recenables

Trade and ofher receivables are initially recognizad at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment loszes for bad and doubtful debts except where the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts.

(i) Trade and cther payables

Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value. These amounts represent
liabiktes for goods and sefvices provided to the Company priof 1o the end of inancial year which are vnpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
prosented as current llablites unless payrment is not due within 12 months aler the Statement of Financial
Pasition date.

15
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
2. Accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Baslc financial Instruments (continued)

(i) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

Imbial Recogrbion and Measurerment.
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets and financal liabilities are initally measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are drectly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financil assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and
financial Eabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the inancial
assets or financial liabiliies, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs drectly attributable to the
acquisition of finandal assels o inancial Habilibes at fair value through proft of loss are recognised mm ediabely
in profit or loss,

Financial Assets — Classification and Subsequent Measurement:
Financial assets are classified, at inilial recognition, and subsequently measured as financial assets a amortised
cost, fair value through cther comprehensive income or fair value through profit of loss on the basis
of both:
+  the Company's business model for managing the financial assets, and
+ the contractual cash low characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition wnless the Company changes its
business model for managing fnancial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business modal.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when both of the following conditions are met:
+ the financial asset is held within a Business Model whose objective is o held financial assets in order to
codlect contractual cash flows; and
+ the confractual temns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash ows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest on the principal amount catstanding.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through cther comprehensive income if bath of the following
conditions are met;
+ the financial asset s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash fows and selling financial assets; and
+« the contractual termsz of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are =olely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (or “FWOCI) as described above are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (or ‘FWTPL™). On
initial recognition, the Company may imevocably designate a financial asset that cthersize meetz the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCH az at PUTPL if doing so eliminates or significantty
reduces an accounting mismatch that would ctherwise anise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment.
The Company makes an assessmaent of the chjective of the business modal in which a fnancial asset is held
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management.

The information considered includes:

+ the stated policies and objectives and the operation of those policies in practice;

« the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

+  how managers of the business are compensated — 0.9, whither compansation it based an the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected,; and

+  transfers of financial asgets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
F Accounting policies | continuwed)
2.3 Baslc financial Instruments (continued)

(i) IFRS 8: Financial Instruments {continued)

Financial assels — Assessment whether confractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and iferes:
Fer the puwposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on inital
recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding dunng a particular period af time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(@.g. lquidity risk and administrative costs), aswell as a proSt margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument,

This includes assessing whether the financial asset containg a contractual term that coud change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

In making this assessment, the Company considers:
+ contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features, prepayment and
extension features; and
+« terms that [imit the Company's claim to cash RBows from specified assets (eug. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract,

Additicnally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that
permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus
accrued (but unpaid) confractual interest (which may also include reasonable addiional compensation for earky
termination) is treated as consistent with this crtedon if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insgnificant at
initial recognition.

Financial assels — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:
Financial assets at amorised cost are measured at amoetised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial labities - Classfication, subseqguent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial liabdiies are classified as measured at amortised cost or FWTPL. A inancial liability is classified as at
FVWTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at PTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in proft or loss, Other financial llabilties are subsequently measured at amortised cost ugng the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

The Company’s financial liabilifes include due to related parties, client deposits, long-term loans and accruals
and accounts payable. These are measured at amortised cost, The Company considers the carrying value to be
a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Derecognlion of financial assels:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when e contractual rights to the cash fiows fom the financial
asset expire, o it ransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash fows in a transaction in which substantialty
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the finandal asset are transfered or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain contrel of the
financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it ransfers assets recognised in Statement of Finangal Position
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised,

17
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
F Accounting policies | continuwed)
2.3 Baslc financial Instruments (continued)

(i) IFRS 8: Financial Instruments {continued)

Derecognbion of financia! labities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual cbligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are madified and the cash flows ofthe
rmodified Rakility are substantially different, in which case a new financial labilty based on the modified terms is
recogmised at fair value.

COn derecognition of a financial Bablity, the difference between the camying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (includng any non-cash assets transferred or liabiliies assumed) is recognised in profit or
lees.

Imparmert of Financial Assels:

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (or "ECLs") on financial assets measured
at amortized cost, The Company measures loss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECLs, except for
fnancial assets for which credt nsk (i.e. the risk of default cecurning over the expected life of the fnancial
instrurnent) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at 12-month ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a fnancial asset has increased significantly since initial recagnition
andwhen estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and gualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s histonical
experence and informed credit assessment and including forward looking informmation.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial aszet has increased significantly if it is more than a
specified amount of days past due. The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
+  the borower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising secunty (If any is hald);
+ the financial asset is more than 365 days past due,

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
Instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result Fom default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the mstrurment is less than 12 months). The
maximum penod considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum confractual period over which the Company

iz exposed to credit risk.

Mea surement of ECLs

EC L= are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Cradit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls {i.e. the difference beteeen the cash fows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the
financial aszet, Management has assessad that the Groups EAD {or “Exposure At Default”) is 100% for all debit
balances and 0% for all credit balances.

Credb-impared financial assels

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets camied at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or mare events that have a detrimental irmpact on the
estimated future cash lows of the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following cbservable data:
significant financial dificulty of the borrower or issuer,;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 180 days past due;

the restructuring of a loan or advance that i cut of the normal practice; or

itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation.

- & & #
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Basic financial Instruments (continued)
(i) IFRS 8: Financial Instruments {continued)

Frezenfation of alibwance for ECL in the Statement of Financial Posiion:
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross camying amount
cfthe assets.

The Company utilises an ECL model internallty developed and updated by management. Inputs into the model is
based upon management's assessment of the probability of default and loss given default.

Wrie-off:

The gross carrying amount of a financial assel is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in itz entrety or a portion thereof. For customers, the Company has a policy of
assessing all balances greater than 120 days. To date the Company has not had to record any related write offs.

Nan-financial rsfruments:

At sach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-fnancial assets to determine
whether there is any indcation of impaimment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount
iz estimated.

24  Cash and cash equivalents

Fer the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial instiutions, other short-term, highly liguid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

2.5 Employee benefits

Defined cortribufion plans and ofther lbng-term employee benefls

A defined contribution plan is a pest-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the Staternent of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Incomein the §nancial year during which services ane rendered by employees,

26 Revenue

Revenue consists of sel-up fees and management fees eamed in respect of the Company acting as an AIFM,
General Partner and LICITS Management Company toinvestment funds, Manager to unit trusts and parnerships,
bank interest and certain sundry income, which is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Cther
Comprehensive Income in the financial year when it is earned. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company, and the amount of the revenue
can be refiably measured,

Managemaent fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund’s Net Asset Value {or “MNAVT), subject to a
minimum agreed fee. Where there is no final MAVY available for a client fund, an estimate of the fee income is
caleulated using the fund's minimum fee or using a previous period's calculation and accounting for any known
changes in the NAV of the Fund, such as capital activity or significant market movements. This basis ofincome
estimation is both reasonable and prudent.

Bank interest income or expense is recognised in the Statement of Proft or Loss and Cther Comprehensive
Income using the effective interest rate.

Frofessional senie fpes
Professional services fees are recorded by reference to the period of the service. Amounts eamed but not yat
billed are recorded as accrued income.

The Company mostly eams fixed annual fees or fied rate fees linked to annual performance obligations or
transaction-based fees which are recognised when the service is offered. Management was not required to apply
other practical expedients for revenue recognition under IFRS 15,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
A Accounting policies | continuwed)
26 Revenue {continued)

Performance obigations and revenue recogniion policies:
These services are recognised over the fnancial year they are provided. The income is accrued until client

invoices are issued, Revenue billed but not yvet considered earned are recorded as deferred revenue.
7 Taxation

Curmrent tax, including Irizh corporation tax (at a rate of 12.5%) is provided on the Company's taxable profits.
Curmrent tax is the expected tax payable or recesvable on the taxable income or loss for the financial year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date, and any adjustrment to tax
payable in respect of previous fnancial years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the
Statement of Financial Position date. Provision is made at the rates expected to appty when the §ming dfferences
reverse, Timing dferences are dfferences between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in
the financial statements that arse from the inclusion of gains and losses in taxable profits in periods different
from those in which they are expected to apply in the years in which the timing differences are expected to reverse
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial
Paosition date. Deferred tax is not discounted.

A defermed tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
revirsal af the undedying tirming dferences can b deducted,

28 Costof sales

Included in cost of sales are costs paid by the Company in respect of platform costs paid on behalf of client funds.
Thess costs of sales are recoversd through the fees charged a3 per revenue in note 3 balow,

29 Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as incurred and
are accounted for on an accruals bags.

210 Deferred coniract costs

In line with the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, incremental recoverable
expenses relaling 1o conlracts with customers ane capitalised and amontised over the expected life of the contract
when these expenses are expected to be recovensd, Management estimate the expected life of the contract The
Directors have estimated that 5 years is an appropriate period of amaortisation (expensed as incurred in the prior
financial year). Where certain contracts have a definite useful life, the incremental costs have been amortised
over the approprate life of the contract,

211 Equity and reserves
All capstal payments are booked to equity within share capital or share premium. Reserves consist of accumulated

profit or loss as taken Fom the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comgprehensive Income since date of
incorporation.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
2. Accounting policies {continued)
2,12 Impamient of assets, other than financial instruments, stocks and work In progress

At the end of each financial year, the Company conducts an impairment review of all its assets and assesses
whether there is any indication that the recowverable amount of an asset is less than its carmying amaount. If any
such indication exists, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount, resulting in an
impaimient loss. Impaiment losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Proft o Loss and Other
Comprehen sve Income,

Where the circumstances causing an impairment of an asset, other than goodwill, no longer apply, then the
impainment is reversed through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. An impairment
less recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods,

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwil and cther intangible fixed assets is the higher of the
fair value less cost to s, of the asset andits value in use. The value in use of these assets is the present value
of the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. Thisis determined by reference to the present value
ofthie future cash fows of the Company which is considerad by the Directors to be a single cash generating unit.

213 Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets

If the Company has provided for a provision or contingent liability or asset, management estimate the fair value,
using the infermation made available to them, and probable expected cash flow advised to them by consulted
professionals.

214 Share-based employee remuneration
The Company operates equity-settled share-based remuneration plans for its employees.

All goods and senices received in exchange for the grant of any share-based payment are measured at thear fair
values.

Where employees are rewarded using share-based payments, the fairvalue of employees' services is determined
indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of non-market vesting condtions.,

2.15 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates
and assumplions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the Bnancial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense during the
fnancial year. Actual results could differ fom those estimates,

The estimates and underdying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recegnised in the inancial year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that inancial period
of i the Bnancial perod of the revision and future fnancial periods if revision affects bath cument and future
pericds, The crtical accounting judgements applied by the Directors ane:

+  Agsessment ofthe acerued income — raview of the clients’ accounts and agresments in place to estimate
the revenues to be accrued at financial year end. Calculation supported by prior year knowledge and
based on signed services agreaments in place between the Company and s clients, there is limited
subjectivity invohved in the calculation, Accrued income is induded in Revenue in Note 3.

+  The deferred contract costs relate to capitalised commissions paid to staff, which the Company expects
to recover over the life of the asset. The amotisation penod is 5 years which the Directors belleve to be
an accurate estimate of the life of the contracts,
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

A

216

217

3

Accounting policies |(continued)
Mew standards effective for annual financial perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

There were no new standards, amendments and interpretations that had a significant impact on the Company's
financial staterents during the year.

Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing Standards that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted early by the Company

At the date of authori zation of these financial statements, a number of new, but not yet effective, Standards and
amendments to existing Standards, and Intespretations have been published by the LASE. Mone of these
Standards or amendments to existing Standards have been adopted early by the Company.

Managemaent anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first fnancial perod beginning
on or after the effective date of the proncuncement. Mew Standards, amendments and Interpretations not adopted
in the current financial year have not been disclosed as they are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements,

Revenue

The investment management fees for the financial year has been denved from:

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

€ €

Management and related fees 55,760,548 24 644 354
55,760,548 24,644,354

The Comparny s authorised and regulated as an AIFM and UCITS Management Company to investimant
funds, manager to unit trust and parnerships and provides portfolio management, sk management and
other activities. Turnover comprises set-up fees and management fees. Management fees are caleulated
based on a percentage of a fund's Met Asset Value {or "NAVT), subject to a minimum agreed fee.

Geographical Market 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
[4 £

Republic of Ireland 49,497 233 19,362,922
Luxernburg 4,558,136 3,812,128
Spain 181,841 150,533
Cayman Islands 1,358,332 1,218,770
France 164, 206 -
55,760,548 24,644 354
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

4, Cost of Sales

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
€ €
Audit and accounting fees for the Funds

managed by the Company 1,539,756 1,218,222

Directors” fees for the Funds managed by the
Company 421,650 360,455
Other cost of sales 25,231,380 6,944 760
27,192,786 8523481

Jther cost of sales constitutes costs paid by the Company in respect of the Waystone platform funds
{umbrella funds that are managed by VWaystone but which host multiple investment managers and
investment advisors on individual sub-funds) and certain client funds (where the Company receives a
management fee and pays certain expenses on behalf of the client out of the management fee). These
costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per turnover in nate 3 above,

8 Administrative expenses

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

€ £
Statutory auditors’ remuneration 66,391 47,506
Directors” fees 300,000 299,990
Staff costs (Mote 8) 6,573,879 £,182,950
Recharges from Group companies {Mobe 16) 7,153,436 7,602,138
Legal and professional fees 154,603 74,338
Depreciation a0z -
Amortisation 192,567 11204
Other expenses 1,958,122 828,293
16,404,300 14,147,229

Statutory auditors’ remuneration 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
€ €
Statutory audit fee A7, 705 43,060
Tax advisory fee 18,686 4,446
66,391 47,508

6. Operating profit 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
€ £

Operating profit is stated after charging:

Realised gain/loss) on foreign currencies 48,621 30,967
Degreciation of tangible assets 302 -
Amortisation of deferred contract costs 192,867 112M4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

i Taxation on ordinary activities

{a) Analysiz of charge in the financial year 31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2021
€ €

Current tax expense

Corporation tax on profit on ordinary activities 1,515,260 242,729

Under/{ower) provision in prior financial year 23,968 25215

Total corporation tax expense 1,539,228 267,544

(b) Reconcliation of current tax charge based on applying the standard rate of tax to the proft per the
financial statements and the current tax charge reported in the financial statements,

Current tax reconciiation

Profit on crdinary activities befora tax 12,122,082 1,828,994
Profit on ordinary activities before tax mubtiplied

by the standard rate of corporation tax in the

Republic of Ireland at 12.50% (2021: 12.50%) 1,515,260 241,124
Effects of:

Luxembourg Wealth Taxation - 1,805
Under/{owver) provision in prior financial year 23,968 25,215
Current corporati on tax expense 1,530,228 267,944

g Employees and remuneration

Number of employees
The average number of persons employed (including executive directors) during the financial year was as
fiollors:
3 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2021
Number Number
Management and staff 52 41
I
The staff costs (nclusive of Directors’ salaries) 31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2021
Comprise € €
Wages and salaries” 5,407,039 4,248,559
Social welfare costs 567,150 415,455
Pension costs 4173 310175
Cther staff benefits 136,969 107,247
Cther staff costs 28 548 101,514
6,573,879 5,182,950

*Share based payments were made o one director and two employees during the fnancial year totalling
€337, 275 (2021: €0,637). The Director and emplovess received shares in the Company's ulbimate parent
company Sigma Insh Topco Lmited. These payments were then recharged to Sigma Insh Topco Limated.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

9. Directors’ remunerati on
31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2021
€ €
Directors” fees 300,000 289,990
Directors” salaries” 296,250 465,531
Directors” bonus - 83,618
Social welfare costs 50,673 65,783
Penszion costs 3,625 45,000
Commissions 17,138 18,375
Medical and cther benefits 9,668 16,020
705,354 1,005,317
“Share based payments were made to cne director during the financial year totalling €146,819 (2021:
€1,527). The Director received shares in the Company's ullimate parent compary Sigma lish Topea
Limited. These payments were then recharged to Sigma Insh Topco Limited.
Remuneration of Directors is disclosed above, Other than noted above, no expenses, share options or other
remuneration was paid or awarded to the Directors during the financial year. The amounts cutstanding to
Directors as at 31 December 2022 was €112500 (2021: €75000).
10. Fixtures, fittings and equi pment
31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 201
Caost € 13
Opening balance 11,370 11,570
Additions 902 -
Clozing balance 12472 11,570
I
Depreciation
Cipening Balance 11,570 11,570
Charge for the financial year 302 -
Closing balance 11,872 11,570
Net book value GO0 -
25
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

". Deferred contract costs asset

31 Dec X022 3 Dec 2021
£ [
Cost
Opening balance 756,726 401,932
Additions 323,762 354,704
Closing balance 1,085,488 756,726
I
Amortisation
Cpening balance 121,044 9,030
Charge for financial year 192,567 112,014
Closing balance 313,611 121,044
Net Book Value 877 635,682

The split of the total deferred contract costs split between current and non-current is shown below;

Current 227,657 161,345
MNen-cument 544,220 484 337
Total 877 635,682

The deferred contract costs relate to capitalised commissions paid to business development staff amounfing
to €328, 762 (2021: €343,815) and deferred set-up costs paid for a new fund launched in 2021 managed by
the Cempany amounting to €Ml (2021: €10,974).

In accordance with IFRS 15, sales commission cogts are capitalised and amortised over the expected kife
of the fund which the sales confract is relates to. The amortization period iz S years, which the Directors
believe to be a best estimate of the life of the confract based on asset management industry average fund
lifie.,

Deferred set-up costs relate to fund set-up costs incurred by the Company in relation to the establishment
of fund for a client during the financial year. These set-up costs are belng amortised over a 5 year period.

12. Trade and other receivables i Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
€ €

Curremt
Trade and cther recevables 4,480,831 1,976,198
Amounts owed from Group companies 413,065 1,108
Prepayments and accrued income 15,766,497 4,730,984
Corporation tax receivable - 70,081
Salaries and wages control account - 8,330
Deferred contract costs (See Nate 11) 227,657 151,345
20,888,050 6,538,024
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

13. Cash and cash equivalents 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
€ E

Cash held at Allied Irish Bank 14,487,854 7459117

Cash held at Bark of Ireland 2,870,241 .
17,358,085 T.459117

——= —_——

At 31 December 2022, Allied Irish Bank had a credit rating of A2, as determined by Moody's (2021: AZ)
and Bank of keland had a credit rating of A3,

14. Trade and other payables 1 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
€ €

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 455,696 361,787
Aceruals and prepald meome 10,702,710 4,021 481
Amounts owed to Group companies 1,045,055 85,383
WAT liability 173,560 100,060
PAYE payable 225,505 148,270
Other taxes due . 12413
Deferred revenue 530,565 -
Corporation Tax payable 1,332,934 -
14,466,025 4,739,354

Ameunts owed to Group companies are interest free, unsecured and payable on demand.,

15. Share Capital and Reserves

151 Called up share capital - equity

31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2021
€ €
Authorised
Crdinary shares of €1 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
Allotted
Crdinary shares of €1 each 4,490,002 4,490,000
Called up and paid
Crdinary shares of €1 each 4,490,002 4,490,000
— —

The ordinary shares are presented as share capital in the inancial statements,

Mo Director had an interest in the share capital of the Company at any ime during the financial year ended
31 December 2022 or the financial yvear ended 31 December 2021,

15.2 Capital contribution

During the financial year, the Company received €3.600,000 as capital contribution from its immediate
parent {2021; Endl),
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

1533 Retained eamings

31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021

€ £

Cpening retained eamings 5,652,084 3991,034
Profit for the Snancial year 10,582, 854 1,661,050
Closing retained eamings 16,234,938 5652084
— ———

Al ordinary shares rank equally. Holders of voling shares are entiled to one vote for each Ordinary share
at general meetings of the Company,

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as
a going concern, o that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

Accumulated losses in equity includes all current and prior financial year retained profits and losses.
16. Related party transactions and controlling party

Ultimate controlling parties
The immediate Parent Company ofthe Company is Waystone (reland) Limited, which is a company incorporated
in 2008 in reland. Waystone (Ireland) Limited holds 100% of the share capital of the Company,

The smallest group in which the results of the Company are consciidated is that headed by Sigma Irish Acquico
Lirmted, which is a company incorporated in 2021 in lraland.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sigma kish Topco
Lirnited, which is a company incorporated in 2021 in reland,

Transactions with group companies
Included in note 5 are the following:

« E2385206 of expenses relates to company secretarial services, risk management serices and
operational support provided by Waystone Centralised Services (|E) Limited {2021: €4,252 234),

«  E500004 of expenses relates to investment management services provided by Waystone Asset
Management (IE) Limited (2021 €500,004),

+  E£326.970 of expenses relates to recharge for rent, rates, service charges, cleaning and other staff cost
provided by Waystone (Ireland) Limited (2021; €471,267),

+ &40, 884 of expenses relates to charges to support the clients of the Company by Waystone Corporate
Services (IE} Limited (2021: €31,250),

+ £1,516,075 of expenses relates to business development recharges and London property recharges by
Waystone Governance (LK) Limited (2021; E632.072),

+  E733,58B5 of expenses relates to recharge for management services and other charges provided by
Cashel Compliance Bidco Limited (2021; €1,583,807),

+« £283.881 of expenses relates to recharge for Bloomberg and other charges provided by Waystone
Management Company (Luxp S.A, (2021: €81 358),

+  £40 345 of expenses relating to Global COE Allocation from Waystone Governance {Cayman) Limited
{2021; €naly,

+  €1682680 of expenses relating lo business development services provided by Waystone Governance
USA Limited (2021: €M),

+  E755,083 of expenses relating to finance, legal, IT, merger and acquisiion costs and performance and
developrment cests provided by Sigma Irish Acquico Uirsted (2021: ENI),

« E77,716 of expenses relaing to business development recharges by Waystone Fund Services
Switzedand S.A (2021 ENI),

. EEI}E.IM of business development recharges provided from Waystone Capital Solutions UK {2021:

ill,
. ?\llzlfm of revenue relating to support staff to Waystone [nvestment Management (IE) Limited (2021:
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022
16. Related party transactions and controlling party (continued)

Included m note 12 are the following balances due from Group companies:
Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limited of €Mil {2021: €315),
Waystone Fund Services (Switzerland) S.A of €N (2021: €791,
Waystone Governance (UK} Limited of €150,408 (2021: €Mil),
Waystone Fund Management {IE) Limited of €262 858 (2021: €Mil).

Included in note 14 are the following balances owed to Group companies:
Waystone Governance Ltd, of €Ml (2021: €3,060,

Waystone (Ireland) Limited of £257,731 (2021: €9, 665),

Waystone Centralised Services (IE) Limited of E87, 854 (2021: £69, 200,
Waystone Governance (LK) Limited of €Nl (2021: €4,754),

Warystone Management Company (Lux) S.4, of €137, 734 (2021: £8,659),
Waystone Asset Management Limited of €811 (2021: €Nil).

Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limited of €4,681 (2021 €Nil),
Waystone Fund Services (Switzerland) S.A. of €77, 801 (2021: €Nil),
Wiaystone Capital Solutions (UK) Lirmited of €100,471 (2021: €Nl
Waystone Compliance Solutions (Midde East) Limited of €29,080 (2021 €Nil),
Waystone Investmaent Management (IE) Lirited of €30,532 (2021 €Nil)
Sigma Irish Acquico Limited of €258,570 (2021: €Nil),

Key managerment personnel cormpensation

The Directors’ remuneration disclosed in note 8 represents the tolal compensation paid to key management
personnel. Included within this is a share based payment made to one director during the financial year totalling
€145,819 2021: €1,927), The Director received shares in the Company's ultimate parent company Sigma Irish
Topco Limited, These payments were then recharged to Sigma lrish Topeo Limited,

Other redated party fransactions

Directors’ remuneration and transactions are disclosed in note 5. Adminigtrative expenses relating to services
provided by other Company companies are disclesed in note 5. Please also refer to note 14 for amounts payable
to group companies. The Company Secretary held shares in other Group companies of the wider Waystone
Group at 31 December 2022,

17. Financial commitments and obligations

The Directors are not aware of any matesnial financial obligations entered into during the current financial year
which have not been adequately reflected in the financial statements,

18.  Indemnifications

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations,
wamanties and obligations which provide general indemnifications. The Company's maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be made against the Company that
have not yet sccurred. However, based on experience, the Compary expects the risk of loss 1o be remote and
has professional indemnity insurance in place to mitigate these risks. Liabilibes incurred may or may not be
covered by the Company’s professional indemnity insurance.

19. Contingent liability

The Company has regulatory, contractual and other duties and obligations arising in the ordinary cowrse of its
business, In its capacity as General Partner to investment limited patnerships (or “Partnerships”), the Company
is liable for the debls and cbligations of the Partnerships where the Partnerships have insufficient propesty to
meet its debts and obigations. These are in the nature of contingent liabilities. Such habiities may or may not be
coverad by the Company's professional indemnity insurance. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no provision
has been made in these financial staternents for such contingent liabilities and such contingent liabilities have
been disclosed by way of thizs note only.
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

20. Capltal management

The Compary is subject to externally imposed minimum capetal requirements by the CBI and these are reviewed
on a quarterly bases by the senior management within the Company and the Board, The Company's regulatory
capital requirements are considered in the budgeting process as per regulatory guidance.

The Company’s CBl minimum capital requirements are as prescribed under the EU Capital Reguirements
Directive (Directive 20133&/EU) and Regulation (EU) Mo SFS2013 on prudential requirements for credit
institutions and investment Brms (together, the Tapital Requirements”). The Company is requined to hold the
rrinimurm level of capital as set out in legislation at all times and is required to submit capital returns to the Central
Bank on a periodic basis. For the purpose of this requirement the capital required is cash on deposit. As at the
end of the financial year the Company's Central Bank minimum capital requirement was €13,067 870 (2021:
€65,224,284).

The Company is meeting its objectives for managing capital through holding cash on deposit above the minimum
capital requirement at 31 December 2022 of €13,237,075 (2021 €6, 723,741}

21.  Financial sk management
Market risk

The Company does not hold any investments on its Statement of Financial Position and none ofthe Company’s
current azsets are directly affected by financial markets, Consequently, the Company has nomates al market rigk
lewel and no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

On 24 February 2022, the president of Russia, Viadimir Putin, announced his decision for Russian to launch a
special milkary operation in Ukraine. This military operation in Ukraine has continued to the date of the Directors
Report and the Directors have actively monitored the situation and its impacts and potential impads on the
Cempany. So far, the Directors have been satisfied that the situation in Ukraine does not significantly impact the
operations of the Company.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company holds a significant amount of its net assets in Euro but has receivables and deposits in United
States (or US7) Dollars, The foreign exchange risk on these US Dollar balances are kept to a minimum through
regular conversions and balandng holdings in Eure equivalent amounts. This serves o minimise the matenal
foreign exchange risks. Upon review, management have determined that there are no material receivable
balances exposed to foreign exchange nsk at the financial year end and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been performed.

Interest rate risk

Movements in interest rates would not have any material impact on the results of the business due to the nature
of cash and related investments held. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been performed.

Credit risk

The Directors are satisfied that a bad debt provision is not required in relation to trade receivables amounting bo
EMil {2021: E€Mil). At any given time, the Company is exposed to credit risk of the value of the trade receivables
at that date. As at 31 December 2022, total frade receivables were €4,480,831 (2021: €1,876,158). The aged
analysis of rade receivables at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Ageing 31 Dec 2022 3 Dec 2021
€ €

0- 30 days 1,523,076 1122872
30 — B0 days 2,262,938 478,358
60 - 90 days Iy 372884
90+ days 421,593 2,083
4,480,331 1,676,188

I I

30
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Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2022

22.  Post-Statement of Financial Position events

There have been no other adiusting or non-adjusting events, which require disclosure in the financial statements
of the Company.

23.  Approval of financial statements

The audited financial statements were approved on 28 April 2023,

K]
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Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services lreland Limited

2023 1,500,000 120

1995 29

IE
Waystone Asset Management (IE) Limited

2023 503,118 7,448

2017

Brown Brothers Harriman Fund Administration Services Ireland Limited

2023 700,000 9,389
1995 29

2023 836 1,600

2023 875 5,000

223/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

224/271



1989

1972

1990

1989
1989

1989

2011

2010 43

2013
2019

2013

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1972
1989 1989
1893
1972
2009 13 2009 65 2010
2010 2010 44
1989 1990
48
2011 61 2013 21
16 2013

225/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1990

2005 2020
1994 2020
2014 24
2015 2020

Unit Trusts
Common Contractual Funds
Investment Limited Partnership

Investment Companies

1997

226/271



1.1

227/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

e
~N o o NN oW

1.1

10

40
2.3

2.3

2.4

2.3

10
10
144
10
25
80
10
35
2.5 2.3
40
20
1988
10
2.7 2.8

228/271



2.10

2.11

2.12

3.1

3.2
3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20

2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9
35

2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9
20

100

30

20

30
10

20

229/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.2 4.1 35

5.1
5.2
10
10

25
10

5.3 5.1 5.2

2.3 2.11 3.1 3.2 5.1 5.2 5.4 5.5
5.6
5.5 5.6

5.4

5.5 2.3 2.12

3.2 3.3 4.1 4.2

5.6

5.7

230/271



5.8
5.9
5.10

6.1

6.2

6.3

231/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1988



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

232/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

6.8 6.1

6.3

6.9

6.10
6.8

25

233/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

125,000
250,000,000
250,000,000 0.02

50

10,000,000

125,000

234/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2006 48

235/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2006 49 20
2004 39
2004 39
2006 49
aa
bb
cc 2011
21

1994 2020

236/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014

300,000

2014

237/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

238/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014 24

239/271



aa

240/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

bb



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

500,000

2014

2014

1997 739

2000

241/271



25

2000

242/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25

41

12.5



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 30
2022 30

243/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12 31

1990

2020

2020

AIF

244271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AIFMD 2003 41 EC 2009 65 EC EC No. 1060

2009 EU No. 1095 2010
2011

AIFMD EU No.231 2013

AIFMD 2013
.No.257
AIFMD

AIFM

245/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSA

CSA

TCA 739

246/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14

75

75

1948 25

DMS 2020 07

247/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 25

GSI

60
NAV

60
NAV

248/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSA

2020 28

2020 22 28
2020
IE

1951 198
10.00
10.00

249/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100,000

100,000

250/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CSA

251/271



EU

2025

23

252/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IE

SA/NV



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2002 1SDA

BNY

50

253/271



EU

2004 39 EC

MiFID

254/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UCITS

10



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 16

2020 17

2020 29

255/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2002 1SDA

TCA 1997

2020

2020

256/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

257/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

258/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31

102

2022 12 31

1990

IAASA

12

102

259/271



ISA
guarantee

2023 15

13-18

260/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (or the “Trust”), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Investments as at 31 December 2022 and Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
financial year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the summary of
significant accounting policies.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and FRS 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland).

In our opinion, the Trust's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2022 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financia year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trust Act 1990.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA”), and the ethical pronouncements established
by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances for the Trust.
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors of the Manager's (or the
“Directors’) use of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis

appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon, such as the Management and Administration, the Investment Manager’'s
Report, the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities, the Depositary’ s Report and the unaudited appendices.
The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistenciesin the financial statements, we are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsihilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland, including FRS 102, and for such internal control asthey determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financia statements

The auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If they
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify their
opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Trust's unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the agreed scope of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s unitholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s
unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City Quay

Dublin 2

Date 15 June 2023

263/271



264/271

EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31
IE
IFRS
2022 12 31
IFRS
2014
1SA
1AASA

12

2014

265/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014

2014
2014 305 312

IFRS

I1SA
guarantee

1SA

266/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014 391

13-18 2023 28

267/271



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor's report to the members of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited (or the
“Company”), which comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the
summary of significant accounting policies.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (or “1FRS") as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion, the Company's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union of the assets,
liahilities and financia position of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
'Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish
Auditing and Accountancy Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA™), and the ethical pronouncements
established by Chartered Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances
for the Company. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilitiesin accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board of Directors (or the "Directors") use
of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsihilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

268/271



EDINETOIOOID)
00000000000000000000000000000(E35772)
Dooooooooooooooooog
Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the Auditor's report thereon, including the Directors Report and the Directors Responsibility Statement.
The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financia statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies in the financial statements, we are required to determine whether
there isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

Thefinancia statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' report is consistent with the financial statements.
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion, the Directors' report has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' report. Under the Companies Act
2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of Directors remuneration and
transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of the Companies Act 2014 have not been made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financia statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, those charged with governance are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as they determine necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, those charged with governance are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

The Auditor's objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with | SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by those charged with governance.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
they conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the Auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify their opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the
Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The Auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Thisreport is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City, Quay, Dublin 2

Ireland

Date: 28 April 2023
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